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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-Z-AE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2015

2014
FET
HK$'000
A B WA Interest income 6 838,496 902,366
FE X Interest expense 7 (248,168) (251,411)
FR S WA Net interest income 590,328 650,955
EmE R & FEE Net premiums earned 8 378,613 434,096
E A Other income 9 142,826 89,345
mEA Operating income 1,111,767 1,174,396
B=EE(EL)Fa Net claims written back/(incurred) 8 7.583 (10,144)
BeZHFsE Net commission expenses 8 (83,368) (110,809)
Pl Operating expenses 10 (266,648) (255,627)
ReTRERT R AR & 5% A Operating profit before impairment 769,334 797,816
BIORERE (EE) Write-back/(charge) of loan impairment
allowances 14 242 (906)
RREE AT E F Profit before taxation 769,576 796,910
] Taxation 15(a) (44,424) (50,937)
REERT Profit for the year 725,152 745,973
F126E 219 B FrEi M sF AL A I iEHRE RN — 25 The notes on pages 126 to 219 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HECR-AFt-A=t—-HLEE

for the year ended 31 December 2015

NEE 5 A Profit for the year 725,152 745,973
Hit2mEs : Other comprehensive income:
HEATREF>EZERZN Items that are or may be reclassified
HA subsequently to profit or loss:
AHHERS Available-for-sale securities:
— R (F518) W FRE — net unrealised (losses)/gains 30 (111,566) 178,161
— HERQAFEZESHEA — fair value changes transferred to
Wk income statement on disposal 30 (129,989) (63,023)
— #5H — amortisation 30 - 13
— — tax effect 30 39,927 (19,595)
RETREF Cash flow hedges:
—BAMERNRATEES) — fair value changes transferred to
income statement 30 3,242 2,852
— RIE — tax effect 30 (535) (471)
HESHEAFEEER Release of translation reserve on disposal
P /8 2 =) By 12 [ B9 of a subsidiary classified as assets
FE X (5 held for sale 30 - (13,104)
NEFHM 2T (EE), WzE - Other comprehensive (loss)/income
EHRTIE for the year, net of tax (198,921) 84,833
AEERHEINFEE Total comprehensive income
for the year 526,231 830,806

F126E 219 B FRE T Al a BITEmEAm—35 - The notes on pages 126 to 219 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=ZZ-—AF+=A=+—H
as at 31 December 2015

2014
T
HK$'000
BE ASSETS
RehEHES Cash and short-term funds 17 21,007,367 18,421,490
FEULF B % BE SR Interest and remittance receivables 18 326,778 350,851
TTESRMTIEA Derivative financial instruments 19 473,403 556,962
BRHEEFE Loan portfolio, net 20 11,502,312 15,571,649
K& Investment securities:
—AHEE — available-for-sale 21(a) 6,638,367 5,734,162
—REEIH — held-to-maturity 21(b) 10,274,001 9,168,795
TENERIE - e REMEE Prepayments, deposits and other assets 23 87,239 20,224
BEEEE Fixed assets 24 26,630 35,109
BREREE Reinsurance assets 27 128,653 144,179
EEHAE Total assets 50,464,750 50,003,421
af& LIABILITIES
FERFE Interest payable 25 170,853 144,044
FERIIRTE « BN X Accounts payable, accrued expenses
Hith&E and other liabilities 26 4,795,423 4,799,578
PTESHMTEA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,821,927 1,575,968
EHHIEAE Current income tax liabilities 15(b) 129,153 133,301
EEFTEEE Deferred income tax liabilities 15(b) 37,093 76,298
REAEE Insurance liabilities 27 978,845 1,112,089
BRI TEE Debt securities issued 28 33,463,211 33,270,129
BEHAHE Total liabilities 41,396,505 41,111,407
s EQUITY
A AR Capital and reserves attributable to
K fff the equity holders:
%N Share capital 29 2,000,000 2,000,000
RE & A Retained profits 5,251,052 5,070,815
2R e Contingency reserve 30 1,632,660 1,437,745
NEERE Fair value reserve 30 184,533 386,161
i Hedging reserve 30 - (2,707)
LM Total equity 9,068,245 8,892,014
BERERAE Total liabilities and equity 50,464,750 50,003,421
BEEREN T NFNA-_THEBEHERFEE  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 April
7T o 2016.
G R Norman T. L. Chan =<H Raymond L. C. Li

B EF#FHTEE Deputy Chairman and Executive Director #77E F 3485 Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

F126E 2198 sl At S BSHRERN—25 - The notes on pages 126 to 219 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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FAMBREE
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HECR-AFt-A=t—-HLEE

for the year ended 31 December 2015

BRI
Attributable to equity holders

RIEHIE
e 3
A& RE A Hitfte Non-
Share Retained Other controlling &g
capital profits reserves interests Total
THL ThL THL T Tin
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-E-ME-B-A&EH Balance as at 1 January 2014 2,000,000 6,048,760 1,512,448 12,972 9,574,180
REE R Profit for the year - 745973 - - 745,973
Eth 2 A - Other comprehensive income;
HHEES Available-for-sale securities 30 - - 95,556 - 95,556
RemE A Cash flow hedges 30 - - 2,381 - 2,381
LEABAGEAEN Release of translation reserve on disposal
NGl mb of a subsidliary classified as assets
[ 5 Al held for sale 30 - - (13,104) - (13,104)
IEEZANREE Total comprehensive income for the year - 745973 84,833 - 830,806
mRERHBEAD R Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk premium
R 0R 2 588 0 50% 2 75% earned from retained profits to
ZRRGHE contingency reserve 30 - (242,407) 242,407 - -
hERGEENZREET Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 30 - 18,489 (18,489) - -
LESBAGEAER Derecognition of non-controlling interests
B AR R on disposal of a subsidiary classified
B R R as assets held for sale - - - (12972) (12.972)
BENZE—=FKE Dividends paid related to 2013 = (1,500,000) - - (1,500,000)
R-E-WE+=F=1— RA#£# Balance as at 31 December 2014 2,000,000 5,070,815 1,821,199 - 8,892,014
REE R Profit for the year - 725,152 - - 725,152
Eth 2 A - Other comprehensive income:
A EES Available-for-sale securities 0 - - (201,628) - (201,628)
b bl Cash flow hedges 30 - - 2,707 - 2,707
IEERENRER Total comprehensive income for the year - 725,152 (198,921) - 526,231
HREEFIEAR RS Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk premium
e GR 28 88 40 50% 2 75% earned from retained profits to
ZRBEE contingency reserve 30 - (221,244) 221,244 - -
HEREERDZRE A Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 30 - 26,329 (26,329) - -
ENZE-mERE Dividends paid related to 2014 - (350,000) - - (350,000)
R=-Z-RF+=F=+—H#%% Balance as at 31 December 2015 2,000,000 5,251,052 1,817,193 - 9,068,245

F126E219 B FrEfft st Atr A BiEHmERm—885 o The notes on pages 126 to 219 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-Z-AE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2015

2014

TET
HK$'000

RELEBABRENRE cash flows from operating activities
# Al Operating profit 769,576 796,910
AT SIBEL TR - Adjustment for:
B YA Interest income (846,024) (910,774)
e H Interest expense 188,653 176,655
A% B A Dividend income 9 (72,748) (34,512)
e Depreciation 10 17,772 24,841
BT EEE ST RN Amortisation of discount on debt
securities issued 59,515 74,756
BORE (E#),/ B (Write-back)/charge of loan impairment
allowances 14 (242) 906
—Mﬁﬂj EESEERA Amortisation of unrealised loss on
ZRHABHFRRAREIE available-for-sale securities
}Eﬂéﬁﬁﬁﬁ transferred to held-to-maturity
securities 30 - 13
BHIRE REEE Amortisation of premium on
investment securities 7,528 8,395
HERE WS F5E Net gains on disposal of investments 12 (122,010) (58,632)
HESEAFEEEN Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
NGl s classified as assets held for sale 13 - (12,991)
ERMTEAERATFEES Change in fair value of financial
instruments (5,037) 2,268
REMENR AT EE Fair value changes of cash flow hedges
YN T transferred to income statement 30 3,242 2,852
BUF 8 Interest received 851,007 940,255
BAF A Interest paid (161,844) (228,441)
R EEEENBEEHHN Cash flows from operating activities
REEGMIHReRE before changes in operating assets
and liabilities 689,388 782,501
JREIEA A #2iR = 18 A & I B9 Change in time deposits with original
TE BRTE R E maturity of more than three months (3,237,239) (69,270)
RS FE Z B Change in remittance receivables 19,090 (11,532)
FERRE e RHEMEEE Change in prepayments, deposits and
other assets (65,900) (3,416)
BERHEEEH Change in loan portfolio 4,069,579 6,695,842
J‘&“ TIRIE - BRI KR Change in accounts payable, accrued
Hﬁg@ E @J expenses and other liabilities (4,155) 179,871
R BEFBEE Change in insurance liabilities, net (117,718) (146,060)
HNEETE 5 A= KE Exchange differences 55,156 71,313
4TS IH 4 Cash generated from operation 1,408,201 7,499,249
EARERE Taxation paid (49,500) (62,003)
RS & 55 Net cash generated from
operating activities 1,358,701 7,437,246
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RETEHMERERE cash flows from investing activities
BEBRTEE Purchase of fixed assets 24 (9,293) (8,757)
BErRHLEEES Purchase of available-for-sale securities 21(a) (4,265,100) (6,034,625)
BESEZIHES Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 21(b) (2,112,356) (2,624,340)
HERER A HTEEES Proceeds from sale and redemption of
FTiS70R available-for-sale securities 3,232,635 4,324,683
ERFEEEHES Proceeds from redemption of
FTiS50R held-to-maturity securities 21(b) 956,997 1,973,405
HESHEAFEEEN Disposal of a subsidiary classified as
WEBARE - HBRERE R assets held for sale , net of cash
ERIREIER and cash equivalents disposed of 13 - (12,705)
BERAIHEERAFRE Dividend received from
available-for-sale securities 72,748 34,512
&R S E5E Net cash used in investing activities (2,124,369) (2,347,827)
BMEFNES RE) FRARHE Net cash (outflows)/inflows before
financing (765,668) 5,089,419
MEITEMERERE Cash flows from financing activities
BITEBBHFBRIR Proceeds from issue of debt securities 28 22,991,809 30,401,011
FBERIE BTERES Redemption of debt securities issued 28 (22,526,495)  (27,524,884)
ERIRE Dividends paid 16 (350,000) (1,500,000)
BB EEMSIR S F5 Net cash generated from financing activities 115,314 1,376,127
ReERERBSER (BD),/ Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
B hnFEE cash equivalents (650,354) 6,465,546
FYERLSRERELSER Beginning cash and cash equivalents 8,413,912 1,948,567
EXHRASREFHESERY Effect of exchange rates on cash and
cash equivalents (1,008) (201)
FREERERRELER Ending cash and cash equivalents 17 7,762,550 8,413,912

F126E219E BT RER A MR — 7 -

financial statements.

The notes on pages 126 to 219 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BERIBBFERARB(RDH ) AN
B (5 [ARE )R MEHRE
ERBAERESHMASRHNEEUS
WELEA (RIEMEERNEREEHM R
HEA - FEGFEARRE)  BERR
& RBIEF B R RERBNDE R EREL -

A BRRIZELKABIRE - X
ERARFEIIRNATHEEFFERE
CREENRERAR(BETEERTA)
ME[ELREE -

BRITERRE SN - AR B AR A B IS R A
FERNEF R RFEIE  BUEER
MEFEMERMNER X -

RETAB BB RELA O FEREE
ARBETEANGHHE MEREES
AEBEFHRRKEIRBBITIELHE - F
ERZHEABERNEE - SRR RMAE
EHGABHRRBEENGE  2EM
AEAHREE o

AN - R EECA RHEBIDE 9 #B (1R B K
Fit | RAM B EEHREAER - Bt AEE
MBHMRAE TEHNZ2FIIKE - IFE
AR E R o

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) which is a
collective term and includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRS), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (HKASS) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong, and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of available-for-sale investment securities, financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)
carried at fair value.

The accounting policies and methods of computation used in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance come into operation during
the financial year, as a result, there are changes to presentation
and the disclosure of certain information in the Group'’s financial
statements.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

@)

New standards and amendments effective on 1
January 2015

The following amendments to HKFRSS effective in 2015
are relevant to the Group:

° “Annual Improvements to HKFRSS 2010-2012
Cycle” and “Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle” include changes to a number
of standards. The amendments have no material
impact on the Group.

New standards and amendments issued but not yet
effective

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 January 2015, and have not been applied in
preparing these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
except the following set out below:
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AR ERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RS LRI 95 o
[€MTH| S Em
EEMCRAENSLE -
FTEMER - EEMRA
NEBIBREERE9
SN —ZE—NEN FE
i WHRBEBGETE
BIB9S AN BEEE T
BERSBEFETEMES
BB E LR E 5%
REEBILEATEN
B WASEEES
E=—RBEEFE28A:
BERA LAFEE
fEEt A Efh 2 E Y5 A
AFEZE AR -
DERNEERIEQAD
E¥BEAUREREE
MNEHNRSREFEM
BE BMEIANKE
BARAFEZEE AR
HKET 2 BERIIAE
CIRGENGIE =3 =0/N
FEMEBTAEME
ERz=FR MAEEH
BE NG B L 45 R I B
HEWEmR - BENIE
EEEEER - BNA
BB ER %395 K
BRBEENEEBRE
Al ZEREMEEH
HHDEMFER AT
R 228+ B T 4% R E LA
AFEZ{FABZH
BEEREFEERRD
AR E M2 E K=
FRER BBMBRE
YR ZE 9 SRR A R SR AE
HhkamAlsl mEs
B RS Bk o 3%
AR B HIBE R
T EBERREBERE:
i 5 b 2R /8 B 1R
BIEFEARERE R
FTRABMER - /8K E
BXHDHREEN B
EHARE B G LR
FEIVATR A o

128 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2015

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities. The
complete version of HKFRS 9 was issued in
September 2014. It replaces the guidance
in HKAS 39 that relates to the classification
and measurement of financial instruments.
HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes three
primary measurement categories for financial
assets: amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income and fair value
through profit or loss. The basis of classification
depends on the entity’s business model and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. Investments in equity
instruments are required to be measured at fair
value through profit or loss with the irrevocable
option at inception to present changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income without
the possibility to recycle these results to the
income statement. There is now a new expected
credit losses model that replaces the incurred
loss impairment model used in HKAS 39. For
financial liabilities there were no changes to
classification and measurement except for the
recognition of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss. HKFRS 9
relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness
by replacing the bright line hedge effectiveness
tests. It requires an economic relationship
between the hedged item and hedging
instrument and for the hedged ratio to be the
same as the one management actually use for
risk management purposes. Contemporaneous
documentation is still required but is different to
that currently prepared under HKAS 39.
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The standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early
adoption permitted. The Group is considering the
implications of the standard.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” deals with revenue recognition
and establishes principles for reporting useful
information to users of financial statements
about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from an
entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is
recognised when a customer obtains control of a
good or service and thus has the ability to direct
the use and obtain the benefits from the good or
service.

HKFRS 15 replaces the previous revenue
standards: HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11
“Construction Contracts”, and the related
interpretations. The standard is effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 with early adoption permitted.
The Group is considering the implications of the
standard.

HKFRS 16 “Leases” sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases. The standard
introduces a single lessee accounting model
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset is of
low value. A lessee is required to recognise
a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements
in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to
classify its leases as operating leases or finance
leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently. The Group is yet to assess
the full impact of the standard on its financial
position and results of operations. The standard
is mandatorily effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
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. “Annual Improvements to HKFRSS 2012-2014
Cycle” includes changes to a number of
standards. The amendments largely apply to
accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016. The Group is considering the
implications of the standards.

There are no other HKFRSs that are not yet effective
that would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group.

2.2. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2015.

@)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities used for issuing mortgage-backed securities,
namely HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited and
Bauhinia MBS Limited) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the
net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company. They are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
separately from equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company.
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When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interests
in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less
provision for impairment allowances. The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

(b)y Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests without change of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
the non-controlling interests, the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposal to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

2.3. Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.
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2.4.

2.5

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.

Other income other than those arising from
insurance and guarantee contracts under Note 2.22

(@) Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on
an accrual basis when the service has been provided.
Upfront arrangement fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate are recognised as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate in determining
interest income on the loans.

(b) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and
available-for-sale investments. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(@ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets
held for trading, and those designated as at fair value
through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is
classified as held for trading if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term or if it is part
of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence
of recent actual pattern of short-term profit-making.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges.
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A financial asset is typically classified as fair value
through profit or loss at inception if it meets the
following criteria:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an
accounting mismatch) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial assets or financial
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases; or

a group of financial assets and/or financial
liabilities is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on
which information about the financial assets and/
or financial liabilities is provided internally to the
key management personnel.

financial assets, such as debt securities held,
containing one or more embedded derivatives
which significantly modify the cash flows, can be
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and for which the
Group has no intention of trading immediately or in the
short term.
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Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Where the Group sold or reclassified held-to-maturity
assets (i) other than due to an isolated event that is
beyond the Group’s control, is non-recurring and could
not have been reasonably anticipated by the Group,
such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s
creditworthiness or (i) other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category
would be reclassified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories.
Available-for-sale investments are those intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in
interest rate, exchange rate or market prices. They are
initially recognised at fair value including direct and
incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently
held at fair value.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the income statement.
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Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-
to-maturity investments are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are included in the income statement in the
period in which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (fair
value reserve), until the financial asset is derecognised
or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in equity is reclassified
to income statement. However, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
the income statement. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the income
statement when the entity’s right to receive payment is
established.

If an asset measured at fair value has a bid price and
an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread that is
most representative of fair value in the circumstances
shall be used to measure fair value. If there is no active
market for a financial asset, the Group establishes fair
value by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm'’s length transactions, reference
to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants.

The Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that
would meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the
available-for-sale categories if the Group has the intention
and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity at the date of reclassification.
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2.6.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the
reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or
amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value
gains or losses recorded before reclassification date are
subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial
assets reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-
maturity categories are determined at the reclassification
date.

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
assets is impaired includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about the following loss
events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments;

o the Group granting to the borrower, for economic
or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, a concession that the Group
would not otherwise consider;

o initiation of bankruptcy proceedings or other
financial reorganisation;

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
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o observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a group of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

— economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant. For exposures which
are not individually significant, the Group will assess
impairment either individually or collectively. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract.
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The calculation of the present value of estimated future
cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less
costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether
or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of
impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of similar credit risk characteristics which are relevant
to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of
such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability
to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on
the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in
the group and historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of
current observable data to reflect the effects of current
conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the
effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups
of assets should reflect and be directionally consistent
with changes in related observable data from period
to period which are indicative of changes in the
probability of losses in the group and their magnitude.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against
the related allowance for loan impairment at the
discretion of the Credit Committee. Such loans
are written off after all the necessary procedures
have been completed and the amount of the loss
has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off decrease the amount
of the allowance for loan impairment in the income
Statement.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale investments

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that an available-
for-sale investment or a group of available-for-sale
investments is impaired. For debt securities, the Group
uses the criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case
of equity investments classified as available-for-sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
income statement — is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of the instrument classified as
available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in income statement,
the impairment loss to the extent of such change is
reversed through the income statement.

Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms
have been renegotiated are treated as renegotiated
loans.
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2.7. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. All the financial liabilities are classified at
inception and recognised initially at fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position
include (i) notes issued under the Debt Issuance Programme
(DIP), (i) notes offered to retail investors through the placing
banks in standalone retail bond issues and under the Retail
Bond Issuance Programme (RBIP) and (iii) notes issued
under the Medium Term Note (MTN) Programme.

These notes are initially designated as either (i) financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or (ii) other
financial liabilities.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition are carried at fair value, with changes
in fair value being recorded in the income statement. Those
notes which are designated as hedged items under a fair
value hedge are adjusted for the fair value changes subject
to the risk being hedged.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of the
consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred.
The notes are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains
or losses, being the difference between the redemption/
repurchase amount and the carrying amount, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which the
redemption/repurchase takes place.
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2.8.

2.9.

Recognition and de-recognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
investments are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and
receivables are recognised when cash is advanced to the
borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
debt securities issued are recognised on the trade date.
Other liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise.
Financial liabilities are derecognised from the statement
of financial position when and only when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value
iS negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from
derivatives are separately presented in the statement of
financial position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments
are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

EERBEFERAT —T-1EFH% 141



AR ERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

/N

ERBIETERAEIATA  mEEHT
ARZEBUASHIRR 1 E - REEE
EETUETAS  ()EHEHRE
EABRIRERENATE(AF
E8H ) L PERREEX
BENTEHIR ZEHE AT RLE LB AR K
RAenE((RERYF]) - EFEHE
TIRENBERT - BENITETAR
et ARRE -

HERATEERNIDEIRRITAET
gl

REBEGNR 5 LR h TR
HEEPIRE 2R - BREEEAMN
NETT R IRE PR 5 By P ERER SRS
REBE TSR EPE B B AR KPS
HEANFEARITETARERES
R HEIPIA R 2 R FEHAER
EFFIEHLE -

(@ AFEHH

WKEERBRERZAFEY
HZITETAMAFEEEE
R R 2 i EEX A
BEZHRBERTFEZES  —HR
WER R ARDE °

HEIR BN A et RE
B SR - $dMIE B ZIRE{E R
B BRASKFHANEERFNE
FEEEWER o

(b)) REREH

REERBESEBRZHESRY
MZTET AN R EZESN
BB D P B At 2
WIER - LR R EET - &
RUEB 73 1) 18 2 IR 10 Ui 2 5% T

27
o ©

25 2B R BB
B S R L A
W -

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain
or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated
as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as
either: (i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities or firm commitments (“fair value hedge”); or, (i)
hedges of highly probable future cash flows attributable to a
recognised asset or liability, or a forecast transaction (“cash
flow hedge"”). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives
designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction,
the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(@) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as fair value hedges are
recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of
a hedged item for which the effective interest method
is used, is amortised to income statement over the
period to maturity.

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash
flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the
income statement in the periods in which the hedged
item will affect income statement.
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When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.

(c) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic
hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
held at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

2.10.0ffsetting financial instruments

2.11.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held
for sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant
loans are derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets
are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.
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2.12.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its chief
operating decision maker.

2.13.Foreign currency translation

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
which is the Company’s functional and the Company’s
and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.
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Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated with the closing rate as at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are translated with
the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition;
non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale, a distinction is made between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount, except impairment, are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;
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Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions),

All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income;

Exchange differences arising from the above
process are reported in shareholders’ equity as
translation reserve; and

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, and of borrowings and
other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to
other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is disposed of, or partially disposed of,

CEREERGE W such exchange differences are recognised in the
ﬁi@ﬁ?#ﬁ = R EH consolidated income statement as part of the
— &5 o gain or loss on sale.
d) HERIMEHR (d) Disposal of foreign operation
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On disposal of foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that

N AR R FE(R I EE 3 = REET A operation attributable to the equity holders of the
Wam &R A © Company are taken to the income statement.
214 BEEE 2.14.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvements  over the unexpired period of the lease
Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease

Computer 3years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. It is included in the income
statement.

2.15.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

ERRBEFERAT —T-REFHR 147



AR ERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.16. EHIRIEIEFRRBLIR

HARAX L eRE B EERIR -
IS ER SR ANER - RIS RIE
RN EM RSB B R ERE
HAMER EERBERAT HEDLE
FEHRMEE R RN EIREERTER o

EHMGRREE2RBREB/NKE
BRI R -

EEFRSHARARBEEIREERA
AR ARG S P RAM25RE
BB EZRIELHBE - BIEMF
HBERAR2RMRE R RERR
ot TEENAE AR RE I IR B EE IR 5
BB EAERER I EE
w e

s A BE A5 AR 2R R AR A5t v ) 62 ] B R
R - ARRRTEHIBEE
FRIEE B = SR O B8 [m] Pl AN SR (B 42 ) -
78 A g A] T8 RS SR & B o B
R BIRE M B A B E e E i
ERFIERTHSHEME -

A HERE KBS RE T AF
EEHEVEREEMEEKET
MR E AR EEETL IR - TR E
BEHEMRERETFTARIOR - B
RIERIEERFBEWR R TR °

2.16.Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax is
provided on temporary differences arising from investment
in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of
available-for-sale investments and cash flow hedges, which
are charged or credited directly to other comprehensive
income, is also credited or charged directly to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in
the income statement together with the deferred gain or
loss.
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2.17.Employee benefits

@)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or
paternity leave are recognised when the absence
ocCcurs.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.

Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme
and a defined contribution scheme, the assets of which
are generally held in separate trustee — administered
funds. These pension plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident
fund scheme and defined contribution scheme are
expensed as incurred.

2.18.Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
where it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation.
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2.19.Leases

@)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. The Group entered into
operating leases primarily as lessee. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the
lease period has expired, any payment required to be
made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as
an expense in the period in which termination takes
place.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. The Group entered into finance leases
primarily as lessor. Finance leases are capitalised as
receivables at the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value
of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance
income. Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using the net investment method, which
reflects a constant periodic rate of return. Hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of a
finance lease are accounted for in the same manner as
finance leases. Impairment allowances are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.6.

150 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2015



2.20.

2.21.

2.22.

ReRFRABHEIRE

RASRERME ReERFRRE
BEERERNEAZ BT =EANE
HM&e  BRAS  RITHAER -
BLEREZINERSENTRENE
T MEBEZPHREBRTS -

MBREREH

MBERALD  AKREARFAAX
I TE BB R A B (B 6 E KR RBEIR
BT AR N MIBRELR
5

MBERALD - RMTFE2.220) rEt e
SRR - SR ABRREL ©

REGFIHMBRIRE LY
@ BEBEREEHN

AEBIZBRRETE T RIS
RERER  REBEFREGTESRE
AR - KIBRFE Gt RIEE
ARER B R R YR S mo AT SE TR
EHEE  EEASAFEN
AEREE - ARFABRBEL
BEE MEL B ERERT -

ERBEASHFEEBEGR
TTRIEHID T EHEZ R RS
SHEERAREHNRE - 0
BRITHIRERRNERERR
A B R A R SN BR R
RE  AREREKERKRE R
RIGE - RERBFENRIRE
RUHAR - LARS ] EL ) 7R 5 W
A ©

2.20.Cash and cash equivalents

2.21.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three
months’ maturity from the date of acquisition, including
cash and balances with banks that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance
contracts in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.22 (b).

2.22.Insurance and other guarantee contracts

(@) Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the Mortgage
Insurance Programme of the Group is accounted for
on the annual accounting basis. Under the annual
accounting approach, the Group makes provisions
based on credible estimates of future income and
outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the
current accounting period. The underwriting result
includes any adjustments arising from the correction of
the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written
through Authorized Institutions (Als) as defined in
accordance with the Banking Ordinance during an
accounting period. The gross premiums after deduction
of discounts and refunds, include the reinsurance
premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the
risk premiums and servicing fees earned by the Group.
The net premiums are recognised as income on a
time-apportioned basis during the time the insurance
coverage is effective.
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Unearned premiums represent that portion of net
premiums written which are estimated to relate to risks
and services subsequent to the end of each reporting
period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims
incurred but not reported and loss reserve at the end
of each reporting period. For risk-sharing business,
50% or 75% of the net risk premiums earned in a year
depending on the respective product is set aside
as a Ccontingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into
by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group
is compensated for 10sses on one or more insurance
contracts issued by the Group. Benefits to which
the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts
held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of claims recoverable from reinsurers
and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of
each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are
primarily premiums for reinsurance contracts and are
recognised as an expense.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the
Group may not receive all amounts due to it under the
terms of the contract, and the impact on the amounts
that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be
reliably measured.

commissions are recognised in the income statement
as incurred.
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Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan
facilities provided to eligible small and medium
enterprises (SMES) and non-listed enterprises, in
return for a guarantee fee, insurance coverage on
reverse mortgage loans provided to elderly people and
on lump-sum loans provided to owners of properties
of subsidised housing schemes primarily for land
premium settlement, in return for an insurance
premium.

The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are
adequate on each reporting date, using the current
estimates of future cash flows under these contracts.
If the assessment shows that the carrying amount of
its guarantee and insurance liabilities are inadequate
in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the
shortfall shall be recognised in the income statement.

50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the
insurance premium earned in a year is set aside
as a contingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered by directors to be appropriate. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.
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2.23.Dividend distribution

Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each
reporting period is disclosed as a liability in the period in
which the dividends are approved by shareholders.
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3.

Financial risk management

3.1. Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios
of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase
of assets through issuance of debt securities; (i) to provide
mortgage insurance cover to Als in respect of mortgage
loans originated by such Als and secured on residential
properties in Hong Kong; (iv) to provide financial guarantee
cover to Als in respect of loans originated by such Als to
SMEs and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong; (v) to provide
insurance cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans
originated by such Als to elderly people; and (vi) to operate
a centralised microfinance platform to support microfinance
loans. By their nature, the Group's activities are principally
related to the use of financial instruments including cash,
loans, debts and derivatives.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk
or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group’s financial
performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at
corporate level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide
risk matters including financial and non-financial risks.
The policies and limits for various risks are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees,
including the Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO), Transaction Approval Committee (TAC)
and Operational Risk Committee (ORC) which report to the
Corporate Risk Management Committee.
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3.2.

The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and
standards for asset acquisition, mortgage insurance, SME
guarantee business and Microfinance Scheme. The ALCO
oversees the implementation of market risk management
and investment guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors. The TAC conducts an in-depth analysis of pricing
economics and associated risks for business transactions,
whilst taking into consideration the latest market conditions
and business strategies approved by the Board. The ORC
is responsible for ensuring that all business entities and
line functions maintain an effective operational risk and
internal control framework. The ORC is also responsible
for providing directions and resolving issues related to
policies, controls and management of operational issues
referred to by line functions, as well as ensuring prompt and
appropriate corrective action in response to audit findings
related to operational risks or internal controls. In addition,
Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review
of the internal control systems of the Company. The most
important types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk which includes currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity price risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio,
investment securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit
risk on ligquid funds and investment securities is limited
because the credit ratings of the counterparties, mainly
sovereigns, quasi-sovereign agencies, banks and companies,
should meet the minimum requirement in accordance
with the investment guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
portfolio, which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. Allowance for impairment
is provided for losses that have been incurred at the end of
the reporting period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property
market could result in losses that are different from those
provided for at the end of the reporting period. The Group
therefore has a prudent policy for managing its exposure to
credit risk.
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To maintain the quality of the asset portfolios, the Group
adheres to a four-pronged approach to (i) select Approved
Sellers with established criteria, (ii) adopt prudent asset
purchasing criteria, (iii) conduct effective due diligence
reviews and (iv) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk
assets or transactions.

Credit risk exposures on mortgage loans of the Group
are spread over a large number of customers and
counterparties. The underlying collaterals on the Group’s
mortgage exposures are located in Hong Kong.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special
attention paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor
these loans and take recovery action such as establishing
relief plan with borrowers in order to maximise recoveries.
Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly and
impairment allowance is charged to income statement in
accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability
of specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation,
which are subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolio mainly
consist of properties and the deferred consideration (Note
26). For finance lease receivable, the collateral types
include taxi and public light bus licenses. Mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable are generally fully secured
by collateral. The current collateral value of properties is
determined with the use of public indices on a portfolio
basis. For other non-mortgage portfolio, no collateral is
generally sought.
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Time deposits with banks and investment securities

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with
banks as the exposures are considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties and short term maturity.
Investment securities are generally unsecured.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association master agreement with all counterparties for
derivative transactions where each party will be able to settle
all outstanding amounts on a net basis in the event of default
of the other party. The Group also executed Credit Support
Annex (CSA) with its major counterparties in conjunction
with the master agreement. Under CSA, collateral is passed
between the parties to mitigate the counterparty risk
inherent in outstanding positions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures
are monitored against counterparty risk limits established
in accordance with the investment guidelines and credit
risk policy of the Group. These counterparty risk limits
are subject to regular review by the Credit Committee
on an annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to counterparty risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments favourable to the Group (i.e. assets with positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express
the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from
market movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and
insurance contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 3.5.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in
cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty to
cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the
Group’s market transactions on any single day.
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Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking
account of collateral held or other credit enhancements
are analysed as follows:

The maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial
assets of the Group are equal to their carrying
amounts. The maximum exposures to credit risk of
the off-balance sheet exposures of the Group are as
follows:

R=B—H5F R-F-MF
+=A=+-A +-A=+-A
As at As at

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
F#&T F&TT

HK$'000 HK$'000

R R AR Total risk-in-force
— IR R ETE — mortgage insurance business 13,408,560 13,117,846
— M ERIRRER — other guarantee and insurance
business 2,996,377 2,094,200
16,404,937 15,212,046
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(b) Credit quality of the loan portfolio is analysed as
follows:

R-ZE—HF RZZ—HEF
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
THET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
KB HTNARE Neither past due nor impaired 11,190,707 15,212,222
BB ARRE Past due but not impaired 311,439 358,920
BERE Impaired 983 2,241
BEREEERE Gross loan portfolio 11,503,129 15,573,383
B EREE Allowance for loan impairment (817) (1,734)
11,502,312 15,571,649

7 2 3 AR R R 18 HA IR R ORL B AY The credit quality of loans that were neither past due

BREAHEREE  ASE
RSB 40 ) P B R AR R
TR -

nor impaired as at the end of the reporting period can
be assessed by reference to the internal rating system
adopted by the Group.

R-Z2E—HF RZZT—0EF
+=A=+—-H +=A=+—H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
F#&xT FHTT
HK$’'000 HK$'000

& Al - Grades:
1238/ 1t03 11,169,818 15,191,051
4% 4 1,271 -
5% 5 19,618 21,171
11,190,707 15,212,222

ERRBEFERAT —T-HEF®H 159



AR ERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

©

1E3RBREENEERRK
i1 HR R i IR SRS B B K
W5 A NEKFEEER N
BIEHE - MR AERERIER
BB S MEE O EKIRK
AR o

AR BRI A B E KL R
MER  ARFETRKFNE
ERPmoaiEm - MsEER
EREBEFEANMRERD
JE W R KA KR o

S5 BRI A B HE Rk
MER - URHEIERERLRE
B RS MELE A B R R
B

BHERRENER

AT AR 2HEREHE R
ERNEREEIT

Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either insignificant
credit risk or no recent past due history; and with
different levels of credit enhancements in addition to
the collateral held as security for mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable.

Grade 4 includes loans with recent past due history
and with different levels of credit enhancement in
addition to the collateral held as security for mortgage
portfolio and finance lease receivable.

Grade 5 includes loans with recent past due history
and with collateral held as security for mortgage
portfolio and finance lease receivable.

Loans past due but not impaired

The analysis below shows the gross amount of loans
that were past due but not impaired at the end of the
reporting period:

R=-B—HF RZT—NEmF
+=A=+—-8H +t-—A=+—8H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
FHBxT F&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BHR Past due:
=@AFHAT Three months or less 309,988 358,190
NEASAT Six months or less but
BiEB=@A over three months 455 58
~E A E Over six months 996 672
FEkE) Total 311,439 358,920
HA S R EMEEZYE Of which fair value of collateral and
IR fErEm A FE other credit enhancement 3,109,508 2,583,822
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Individually impaired loans

Individually impaired loans of the Group before taking
into account the cash flows from collateral held
amounted to HK$983,000 (2014: HK$2,241,000).

The fair value of related collateral held for individually
impaired loans of the Group was nil (2014:
HK$5,061,000).

Repossessed properties

The Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as
practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce the
outstanding indebtedness and are classified in the
statement of financial position within “Other assets”. If
excess funds arise after repayment of the outstanding
indebtedness, they are distributed to the beneficiaries
of the assets under the applicable laws.

Cash and short-term funds

According to the investment guidelines approved
by the Board of Directors, the Group can only place
deposits with note-issuing banks or banks with a
certain minimum credit rating. As at 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014, the minimum acceptable
short-term credit ratings are A-2 (Standard and Poor’s),
P-2 (Moody’s) and F-2 (Fitch).
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According to the investment guidelines approved by
the Board of Directors, the Group can only invest in
debt securities with a certain minimum credit rating.
The proportion of investments according to rating
categories is monitored and reviewed by ALCO.

RIBINBIE BB FRITE
(BEELEMm BakEE) T
51 45 2 R IR R E AR 8 &
BEFZEDT - MEHKF
BANR AIRAESZEITA

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities
by rating designation as at the end of the reporting
period, based on external credit agency’s ratings
(Standard and Poor's, Moody's and Fitch). In the
absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings for the
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HIFTAR 23R issuers are reported.
THEEES BRZHMES

Available-for-sale  Held-to-maturity oL

securities securities Total

R=B-RF+=A=t-H TERT TET TAT
As at 31 December 2015 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/A3A AAA/AGa 15,537 1,202,859 1,218,396
AA- Z AA+ /Aa3 E Aal AA- 10 AA+/Aa3 to Aa1 3,306,845 6,755,670 10,062,515
A-ZA+ /A3EAT A-10 A+/A3 10 A1 976,895 2,315,472 3,292,367
ke Total 4,299,277 10,274,001 14,573,278

T HERs

RREIMES

Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity B

securities securities Total

W_ZE-NF+-A=+—H AL TEL THTL
As at 31 December 2014 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA /Aaa AAA/A3a 500,000 1,205,035 1,705,035
AA- 2 AA+ /A33 £ Aal AA-t0 AA+/Aa3 10 Aa1 3,051,831 6,348,593 9,400,424
A- ZA+/A3EAT A-10 A+/A3 10 A1 1,198,242 1,615,167 2,813,409
ok Total 4,750,073 9,168,795 13,918,868
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3.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group's exposures to market risk primarily arise
from the interest rate management of the entity’s financial
instruments of different repricing characteristics, or from the
net exposure of the foreign currency denominated financial
instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion of its
existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance
using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps
by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets. The Group also hedges the net exposure
of the foreign-currency denominated debts issued by the use
of cross-currency swaps as fair value hedges and economic
hedges respectively.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken
by the Treasury Department using risk limits approved
by the Board of Directors. Strategies on interest rate
risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review
the latest conditions in the financial markets and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives, debt and investment
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by
ALCO. The middle office monitors the compliance of risk
limits and performs stress tests to assess the potential size
of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The results
of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.
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A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to
monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income
under different interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the
negative impact through hedging operations. A 20 basis
points parallel downward shift of the interest rate curve as at
31 December 2015 would increase the future net interest
income for the next 12 months by around HK$9 million (2014-
HK$1 million) and decrease by around HK$9 million (2014
HK$1 million) for a similar upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2015, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit
for the year would have been lower by around HK$0.2 million
(2014: higher by less than HK$0.1 million) and the fair value
reserve would have been higher by around HK$7 million
(2014 HK$7 million) as at 31 December 2015. If interest rates
had experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift upwards,
profit for the year would have been higher by around HK$0.1
million (2014 lower by less than HK$0.1 million) and the fair
value reserve would have been lower by around HK$7 million
(2014: HK$7 million).

As at 31 December 2015, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against the US dollars, profit for the
year would have been around HK$15 million higher (2014:
HK$15 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong dollars had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US
dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$15
million lower (2014: HK$15 million).

As at 31 December 2015, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against foreign currencies other than
US dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$7
million higher (2014: HK$9 million). Conversely, if the Hong
Kong dollars had strengthened by 100 price interest points
against foreign currencies other than US dollars, profit for
the year would have been around HK$7 million lower (2014:
HK$9 million).
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As at 31 December 2015, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trusts had decreased by 1%, the fair value
reserve would have been around HK$23 million lower (2014:
HK$10 million). Conversely, if the price of exchange-traded
funds and real estate investment trusts had increased by 1%,
the fair value reserve would have been around HK$23 million
higher (2014: HK$10 million).

The increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, exchange rates and equity prices for a 12-month
period.

(@) Foreign currency exposure

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on
its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets
allowable currencies for investment purposes. The
ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may be
undertaken, which is monitored daily. At funding side,
the multi-currency feature of the MTN programme
enables the Group to issue notes in major currencies,
including US dollars, renminbi, Singapore dollars,
British pounds, Australian dollars, euro and Japanese
yen. All foreign currency-denominated debts are fully
hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
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TR A 5 B 59 SN [ 2K R The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
% o RINFTE ARIRE AT foreign currency exchange rate risk. Included in the
MEEHEAE  WEKEKER tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
D o categorised by currency.

Hlsheg
B %% Other foreign ag
HKD usb currencies Total

ThRL ThRL THEL THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R=B-TE+=B=1—R Asat31December 2015

BE Assets
RehEHEs Cash and short-term funds 18,651,940 2,350,198 5,229 21,007,367
FEIH 2 R EFR Interest and remittance receivables 203,143 72,462 51,173 326,778
fTEERMTA Derivative financial instruments 473,079 324 - 473,403
ENMAES Loan portfolio, net 11,502,312 - - 11,502,312
FERE Investment securities:

—AfnE — available-for-sale 2,874,408 3,588,811 175,148 6,638,367

—BEEZHE — held-to-maturity 3,835,900 5,824,429 613,672 10,274,001
ANFE e REMEE  Prepayments, deposits and

other assets 41,082 46,059 98 87,239

EEEE Fixed assets 26,630 - - 26,630
BRREE Reinsurance assets 128,653 - - 128,653
BEBE Total assets 37,737,147 11,882,283 845,320 50,464,750
8 Liabilities
FERHIE Interest payable 136,257 1,814 32,782 170,853
FERRE  BRRETR Accounts payable, accrued expenses

inEE and other liahilities 4,795,051 372 - 4,795,423
TESBTIE Derivative financial instruments 1,821,927 - - 1,821,927
SHREAR Current income tax liabilities 129,153 - - 129,153
EERBRE Deferred income tax liabilities 37,093 - - 37,093
RREE Insurance liabilities 978,845 - - 978,845
BERIEBES Debt securities issued 20,704,457 1,387,954 11,370,800 33,463,211
BEeE Total liabilities 28,602,783 1,390,140 11,403,582 41,396,505
SEFE Net position 9,134,364 10,492,143  (10,558,262) 9,068,245
BEAEFRINEGSEAT  Offbalance sheet net notional

position* (14,569,037) 1,387,277 11,306,888 (1,874,872)
' R kL # “Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the

EINETESRTA(EZER
PAORE AR SR MR B BOR B Ay L
BR)MEBERSEEEAFTED

difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.

* Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
* 2HERABTT by Il g Kong

o 8 58 0 HE 51 {8 7 ) B 4 { *x Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of
e AR IS 7 f 5 18
TR | A3 (5 T AR T S TR HK$5.1 billion, Australian dollars of HK$4.3 billion and renminbi
Az 73 =Y B 1 . .
T 00 8 5 5T ) AR M f of HK$2 billion, fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

Bz WERBERNAET
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WZZ—ME+-FA=+—H Asat31December 2014

HhroMg
%L Otherforeign k|

) currencies Total
THL THL THL

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000

BE Assets
BeRhE#E: Cash and short-term funds 14,194,978 4,225,761 751 18,421,490
YR B R ER Interest and remittance receivables 226,300 65,397 59,154 350,851
TESBTA Derivative financial instruments 556,962 - - 556,962
ETHRE T Loan portfolio, net 14,876,420 695,229 - 15,571,649
BHRE Investment securities:

—AfHE — available-for-sale 3,285,364 2,264,151 184,647 5,734,162

— R Z5E — held-to-maturity 3,534,737 4,779,118 854,940 9,168,795
FNFUE - KEREMEE  Prepayments, deposits and

other assets 20123 101 - 20,224

EEEE Fixed assets 35,109 - - 35,109
BRREE Reinsurance assets 144,179 - - 144,179
BERE Total assets 36,874,172 12,029,757 1,099,492 50,003,421
BfF Liabilities
FERFIE Interest payable 96,275 7,447 40,322 144,004
FE(IRIE - BRI R Accounts payable, accrued expenses

HEhBfE and other liabilities 4,751,861 47717 - 4,799,578
ITESBTA Derivative financial instruments 1,575,968 - - 1,575,968
EHREAR Current income tax liabilities 133,301 = - 133,301
ERHEAR Deferred income tax liabilities 76,298 - - 76,298
RBEE Insurance liabilities 1,112,089 - - 1,112,089
BETEBES Debt securities issued 16,273,562 4,221,469* 12,775098% 33,270,129
AELEE Total liabilities 24,019,354 4,276,633 12,815,420 41,111,407
BERE Net position 12,854,818 7,753,124 (11,715,928) 8,892,014
BEABRINFREHAT  Offbalance sheet net notional

position* (17,833,990) 3,523,133 12,702,831 (1,612.976)
# [BEBERINEREEA] # "Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
EONESTAESRTA(ZTEA difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency

PORE AR S BR B R B RO,
)% &S REE RN FER

o

* SEEhRETT -

* RECEMREETHREE -
B 7 A TLRRITETS
BHERI7TEAETHAREE
BES  LREEHRET -

derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.

Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of

HK$4.8 billion, Australian dollars of HK$4.8 billion and renminbi
of HK$1.7 billion, fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
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(b)
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Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets
limits on the level of interest rate mismatch that may
be undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group's
exposure to interest rate movements, are included
under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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-EANE  ZEANL -t
Z=fR E-F it
—fEAR Over Over Over REYE FitE

Upto 1monthto  3months  1yearto Over Non-interest g
Tmonth 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years hearing Total
TEn T Tén T Tén T Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-E-RF+-F=+-F Asat31December 2015

&E Assets
BeREHES Cash and short-term funds 4,362,986 8,265,000 8,300,438 - - 78943 21,007,367
JElF S RER Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 326,778 326,778
fTE2BIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 473,403 473,403
e Loan portfolio, net 11,425,841 36,035 12,784 27,406 246 - 11,502,312
EHRE: Investment securiies:

—AfHHE — avallable-for-sale 601,873 1,365,585 810,218 1,521,601 - 2,339,090 6,638,367

e — held-to-maturity 176,973 232,505 551,128 5,241,407 4,071,988 - 10,274,001
ENUE  REREMEE  Prepayments, deposits and

other assets 45,958 - - - - 41,281 87,239

BEdE Fiked assets - - - - - 26,630 26,630
BRREE ReinsLirance assets - - - - - 128,653 128,653
EESE Total assets 16,613,631 9,899,125 9,674,568 6790414 4,072,234 3414778 50,464,750
= Liabilities
EfFE Interest payable - - - - - 170,853 170,853
JEREE  BHELR Accounts payable, accrued expenses

AfhAE and other liabilities 4,717,601 - - - - 71,822 4,795,423
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1821921 1821927
EHRESE Current income tax liabilties - - - - - 129,153 129,153
EEHBARE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 37,093 37,093
RREE Insurance liabilties - - - - - 978,845 978,845
BRIRBES DeDt securities issued 7,030,867 9,016,856 6,690,366 7,563,986 3,161,136 - 33463211
BfEeE Total liabilities 11,748,468 9,016,856 6,690,366 7,563,986 3,161,136 3.215,693 41,396,505
flegRERDEE Total interest sensitivity gap* 4,865,163 882,269 2,984,202 (773,572) 911,098
FIBATAET B (BAEEH Interest rate derivatives (notional

2548 amounts of net position) (5,080,017)  (12,685,001) 6,668,761 7,172,025 2,049,360

* Kt ASTESRITASESY @ before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments
BEITEBRESNTZE - on the debt securities issued.
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—[EARA

Upto
1 month
B

HK§'000.

Over

1 month to
3months
ThL
HKS'000

F
Qver
3months
to 1 year
T
HKS'000

—ENE
ESiE
QOver
Tyearto
5years
L
HKS'000

RENE
Qver

5 years
Thn

Rite
Non-interest
bearing
L
HKS'000

R-B-ME+-A=1+-8  Asat31 December 2014
EE Assets
ReREmES Cash and short-term funds 9,113,670 7239428 1,943,602 - - 524,790 18,421490
JEWFIE RER Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 350851 350,851
fIESRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 556,962 556,962
EHBAZE Loan portfolio, net 14,465,392 1,050,667 19,738 34,286 1,966 - 15,571,649
FHRE: Investment securiies:

—mLE — avalable-for-sale 1.348,592 1,134,068 1,072,891 1194522 - 984,089 5,734,162

—BEEYE — held-to-maturity 11225 250,103 929463 4,388 264 3,989,740 - 9,168,795
BIE BEREMEE  Prepayments, deposits and

Other assets - - - - - 20204 20,204

EesE Fixed assets - - - - - 3,109 3,109
BRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 144179 104179
EELE Total assets 24,938,879 9,674,266 3,965,694 5617072 3,591,306 2,616,204 50,003421
8% Liabilities
RIS Interest payable - - - - - 144,044 144044
ENIRE - ERFXR Accounts payable, accrued expenses

et and other liabilities 420659 = = = - 512919 4,799,578
fiEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,575,968 1,575,968
EHhEaE Currentincome tax iabilties - - - - = 133301 133301
BERERE Deferred income tax liabilties - - - - - 76,298 76298
RRAE Instrance liabiliies - - - - - 1,112,089 1,112,089
BEIREEAS DeDt securities issued 8,167,682 10,009,674 4002428 8,040417 3049928 - 33210129
ek Total liabilities 12,394,281 10,009,674 4002428 8,040417 3009928 3,614,679 1,111,407
NEgEERDES Total interest sensitivity gap* 12,5459 (335,408) (436,73) (2,423,345) 541,378
FERATAGSEEES  Interest rate derivatives (notional

%548) amounts of net position) (3960,694) (12,118732) 3,976,360 7,800,506 2,689,584

Rt ATESMITASESY o before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

BETEBEFNZE - on the debt securities issued.
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3.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being
able to repay its payment obligations or to fund committed
purchases of loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
the actual inflows and outflows of funds on a daily basis and
projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of funds across a
full maturity spectrum. The Group has established diversified
funding sources to support the growth of its business and
the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources
of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.

(@ Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by
the Group under non-derivative financial liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the tables are the projected
contractual undiscounted cash flows including future
interest payments on the basis of their earliest possible
contractual maturity. The Group’s derivatives include
interest rate swaps that will be settled on net basis;
and cross currency swaps that will be settled on gross
basis.
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iy SESTAETERSRH ()  Non-derivative cash outflows

AN =EANL —EHE
= B-fF ZRE
—-fBAR Over Over RENE

Upto 1monthto 3 months 1year to Over o
1 month 3 months to 1 year 5years 5 years Total
TR TiEn TiEn T TiEn TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R=B-FEF+=A=+-H Asat31December 2015
=1 Liabilities
DR TEBES Debt securities issued (4,150,451)  (4,266,029)  (9,279,444) (13,610,074)  (4,078,459) (35,384,457)

—EpE
) BhE
—f@ARA QOver Over RENE

Upto 1 month to 3months 1yearto QOver

1 month 3months t0 1year 5years 5years Total
AL TAL AT AL TAL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-E-ME+-F=+—H Asat31December 2014
af Liabilities
BEfTEBES Debt securiies ssued R3NBY) GG (1091362 (14974608 (B113780)  (34639.9%)
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iy PTEITAERESRACR (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
)

=) -E0E
2-F k3
—-fEARK Over over RENE

Upto 1monthto 3 months 1yearto Over L
1 month 3 months to 1 year EH 5 years Total
TAR TAx TAR T TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W=Z-REF+=A=1-H Asat31December 2015
RTHIEEEZR T4 SR TE : Derivative financial

instrument settled:
—FRERE — onnet basis (1,232) (60) 10,130 (2,397) - 6,441
—BELE — 0 g10ss basis
it Total outflow (2,935923)  (4,127,509)  (1,893,649)  (5,096,754) (758,326)  (14,812,161)
AR Total inflow 2,860,597 3,958,892 1,936,884 3,741,106 665498 13,162,977

(76,558) (168,677) 53,365  (1,358,045) (92,828)  (1,642,743)

AR Qver Over RENE
Upto 1 month to 3months 1yearto QOver

1 month 3months 10 1year 5years 5years Total

Fitn ThL BT BT TEL T
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-E-ME+-F=+—H Asat31December 2014
RTYIEEEER 4SBT A : Derivative financial

instrument settled:
—FEEE — 0n net basis 488 (638) 8833 (10453) (1522) (329)
—lmEE — 0N gross basis
stk Total outflow (1,862,366) (3,690,577) (6,976,967) (6,705,515) (873342 (20,108,767)
MALE Total inflow 1,779,930 3,523,050 6,896,736 5722179 878,131 18,800,026

(81,948) (168,165) (71,399) (993,789) 3,261 (1,312,033)
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(b) ZHHB DT (b)  Maturity analysis

TERBEBEEHRARESHEH The table below analyses the assets and liabilities into

BEIGHRE 2T EEEER relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining

B EREHER period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date.

—EARE =EARE —FHE
Z=f@B E-F Z5E
WRES -@AR Over Over over HEENE

Repayable Upto 1monthto 3months 1yearto Over ERE ag
ondemand  1month 3 months to1year 5 years 5years  Undated Total
TER TER TER TER TER TER TERT TERT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

W-Z-FEF+-B=1-R Asat31December 2015

gE Assets

ReREHEs Cash and short-term funds 68,535 4,373,395 8,265,000 8,300,437 - - - 21,007,367

G Loan portfolio 3,425 83115 177,580 744,518 3,418,852 7,074,094 1,545 11,503,129

EHRE Investment securities

— e — available-for-sale - 601,873 477,899 1,697,903 1,521,602 - 2,339,090 6,638,367

—REEHH — held-to-maturity - 176,973 - 783,633 5241407 4,071,988 - 10,274,001

HRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 128653 128,653
71,960 5235356 8,920,479 11,526,491 10,181,861 11,146,082 2,469,288 49,551,517

& Liabilities

RREE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 978845 978,845

BRTERES Debt securities issued - 4,106,271 4,137,561 8,915,442 13,142,801 3,161,136 - 33,463,211

4,106,271 4,137,561 8,915,442 13,142,801 3,161,136 978,845 34,442,056

—FHE
J EyiES
MEEE  —EAR Over  REKNE

Repayable Upto 1monthto ~ 3months  1yearto QOver BRE &%
on demand Tmonth  3months  t01year 5years 5years  Undated Total
TAT T T BT FHT FHT FhT FhAT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZ-mE+-A=+-—8 Asat31December 2014

BE Assets
RehEHEs Cash and short-term funds 523620 9114840 7239428 1,543,602 - - - 18421490
g5a Loan portfolio 3202 800,455 216664 1871200 3965593 8713561 2708 15,573,383
FHRE Investment securiies
—AfHE — avallable-for-sale = 998,080 - 1669663 2,082,330 - 984,089 5,734,162
—HEZHH — held-to-maturity - 11,225 7458 929462 4620910 3589740 - 9168795
BRBREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 144,179 144,179
526822 10924600 7473550 6013927 10668833 12303301 1,130,976 49,042,009
B Liabilities
RBaE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1112089 1,112,089
BENERES Debt securities issued - 2303861 320029 10538022 14,178,022 3,049,928 - 33210129

— 2303861 320029 10538022 14178022 3049928 1,112,089 34,382.218
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3.5.

Apart from the above, interest and remittance
receivables, prepayments and other assets, interest
payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
current income tax liabilities are expected to be
recovered or settled within twelve months from the
reporting date. Other assets and liabilities included
in the statement of financial position are expected to
be recovered or settled in a period more than twelve
months after the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to
providing the Group with a HK$30 billion revolving
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility, which
enables the Group to maintain smooth operation under
exceptional circumstances, so that it can better fulfil its
mandate to promote banking and financial stability in
Hong Kong.

Insurance risk

The main insurance business of the Group is the mortgage
insurance which provides cover to the Als for first credit
losses of up to 30% of the property value of a residential
mortgage loan in Hong Kong with loan-to-value ratio 90% or
below at origination, or other thresholds as specified from
time to time. The Group also provides financial guarantee
cover to Als up to 50%-70% of the banking facilities granted
to SMEs and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong, insurance
cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans originated
by such Als and secured on residential properties, and in
respect of lump-sum loans advanced by such Als to owners
of properties of subsidised housing schemes primarily for
land premium settlement and secured on these properties.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.
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For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is
that the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the
insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency
or severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and amount of
claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group
has developed a business strategy to diversify the type
of insurance risks accepted and within each of the key
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are a downturn of the
economy, a slump in the local property market and a low
mortality rate of borrowers. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of
claims and collateral value. A drop in property prices, where
the collateral value falls below the outstanding balance of
the mortgage loan, will increase the severity of claims. Low
mortality rate of borrowers means longer payout period
and larger loan balance will be over time. This will affect
the frequency and severity of claims as there is a risk of the
property value insufficient to cover the outstanding loan
balance in the future.
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The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance underwriting eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient
provision is set aside for meeting future claim payments,
the Group calculates technical reserves on prudent liability
valuation assumptions and the method prescribed in the
regulatory guidelines. The Group also takes out quota-share
reinsurance from its approved mortgage reinsurers and
excess-of-loss reinsurance arrangement in an effort to limit
its risk exposure under the mortgage insurance business.
The Group conducts comprehensive assessment including
the financial strength and credit ratings of the mortgage
reinsurers in accordance with the approved selection
framework set by the Credit Committee. The approved
mortgage reinsurers are subject to periodic reviews. For
financial guarantee cover provided to Als, the Group relies
on the lenders’ prudent credit assessment on the borrowers
to mitigate default risk and any loss in the loan facility will be
shared proportionately between the Group and the lender on
a pari passu basis to minimise moral hazards. The mortality
assumptions of reverse mortgages are also reviewed on a
regular basis, to assess the risk of larger deviation between
the actual and expected operating results.

As at 31 December 2015, if combined ratio had increased by
1%, profit for the year would have been HK$3 million (2014:
HK$4 million) lower. If combined ratio had decreased by 1%,
profit for the year would have been HK$3 million (2014: HK$4
million) higher.
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3.6. SRS EREBEBENATEE 3.6. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(@ AFEME (@) Fair value estimation
TRINTEZEAFERIEGBE The following table shows financial instruments
HEGHE) RN SR I A - recognised at fair value, by valuation method. The
NP ERERRIERDT : different levels of fair value hierarchy have been

defined as follows:

. RGBT %R A ERE o Quoted prices in active markets for identical
EBEsHRE(E— assets or liabilities (“Level 17);

Bl :

. BE-—EMBEZ®RE o Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level
I MEERAEGBRE 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
B (B S (gt either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived
EARHEE) Al ER 2 Uk from prices) (“Level 2"); and
([#F=E]: &

e FHEBEENRBBLIE e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
AT B ER 2 % BUE (1 on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
ERz2HE) ([E= ("Level 3").

Bl -

W-2-HE+=A=1-H NZE-ME+=A=1—H
As at 31 December 2015 As at 31 December 2014

F-F F-E #R F-F £°E

Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
TER TiEL TEL T T THr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BE Assets
fTESRMIE Derivative financial instruments - 473,403 473,403 - 556,962 556,962
EHEER Available-for-sale securities
—EBES — Debt securities 2,264,054  2,035223 4,299,277 3,023,999 1,726,074 4,750,073
—HihE % — Other securities 2,339,090 - 2,339,090 984,089 - 984,089
4,603,144 2,508,626 7,111,770 4,008,088 2,283,036 6,291,124
8% Liabilities
fTESRIE Derivative financial instruments - 1,821,927 1,821,927 - 1,575,968 1,575,968

AR R E A Debt securities issued
ATER A ABEH  designated as at fair value
BRTERES through profit or 10ss upon
initial recognition - 343,398 343,398 - 336,201 336,201

- 2165325 2,165,325 = 1,912,169 1,912,169
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No financial instrument was measured at fair value
using a valuation technigue not supported by
observable market data (Level 3) as at 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014.

There was no transfer between Levels 1 and 2 during
the year.

(i) Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm'’s length basis. If an asset or a liability
measured at fair value has a bid price and an
ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value. These instruments are included in Level 1.
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Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

Level 2 derivatives comprise interest rate swaps
and currency swaps. These derivatives are fair
valued using forward interest rates and forward
exchange rates, if applicable, from observable
yield curves.

Level 2 debt securities are fair valued using
quoted market prices in less active markets, or if
not available, a discounted cash flow approach,
which discounts the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from observable market
prices of other quoted debt instruments of the
counterparties.



(b)

SHEE
— A

SHER
BEAERES

UHFARFEFENEHMEE
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RZZE—RAF+=RA=+—H
FE_E—WNF+_A=+—
B NEBEI KRR EMRRE
BRATFERHZI M ITAD
IREEEAFELEHEERT
B GREEREEAFERE
MET AN TRAEUR
TEFENEMITAZIER
B A FEERAFERER
Al :

A

Carrying
amount

TER
HK$'000

Financial assets
Investment securities

— held-to-maturity 10,274,001

Financial liabilities

Debt Securities issued 33,119,813

(b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments not presented on the Group's statement of
financial position at their fair values are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014 except for the following
financial instruments, for which their carrying amounts
and fair values and the level of fair value hierarchy are
disclosed below:

R=B-EF+ZA=1-A —MéE+=f=+-F
As at 31 December 2015 As at 31 December 2014
REE
AYH £ #FE Carrying ATE £ |
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 amount Fair value Level1 Level2
TEn TEn TER ThL Thr ThT Thr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

10,506,512 10,206,401 300,111 9,168,7% 9,444,285 7,348,169 2,096,116

33,335,388 - 33335388 32933928 32,936,482 = 32,936,482
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fEEeMIAAFEBERS
o EREEER :

(i)

(iii)

The following methods and significant assumptions
have been used to estimate the fair values of financial

instruments:

ReMERES 0)

ReRhEHMESEER
TER FEFEFHNA
FEMNEEERE R
R (FRHRE DR
@A) MEFAFEE
RERRBEERRE
BB ITE R I H X
LR FRAE 2R
HEemE- Bt 75
A FEHFNEIRE
@ o

BB (ii)

BB A B T L1
BRI N2 B
B E REER RS -
Bt - RHRAA HIRE
BRRTENHATEHLH -
BFRA — HEEIH (i)
HEZHMAEZ AT
EATERER S
BB R - R b
REEHAR - AR
ABRAREE  2MA
R RS B2 B S
PR B AT E -

BEEITEES

RFELBTLIENT IS
BEFE - ZERKRE™
LRENES §ER
31| 57 A1 R 4 HA PR ) 3R B
Was R R RAE
MEMBAREGH -

182 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2015

Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank
deposits. The fair value of floating-rate deposits is
the carrying amount. The estimated fair value of
fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
6 months, is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. An insignificant portion of loan
portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore,
the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities — held-to-maturity

Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based on
market prices or broker/dealer price quotations.
Where this information is not available, fair value
has been estimated using quoted market prices
for securities with similar credit, maturity and
yield characteristics.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based
on quoted market prices. For those notes
where quoted market prices are not available, a
discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining
term to maturity.
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3.7.

(v)  Other liabilities

These mainly represent the deferred
consideration used for credit enhancement
on the mortgage loans purchased from
the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the Government) in
December 2003 and January 2004 with the fair
value approximating the carrying amount.

Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the equity on the face of the statement
of financial position, are:

o To comply with the capital requirements set by the
Financial Secretary of the Government (the Financial
Secretary),

o To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders;

o To support the Group's stability and growth;

o To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based
approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the

shareholders; and

o To maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.
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Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored daily by the Group’s management in accordance
with the Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio (the
Guidelines) issued by the Financial Secretary, by reference
largely to Basel Il risk-based capital adequacy framework.
The minimum Capital Adeguacy Ratio (CAR) stipulated in the
Guidelines is 8%.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report to
the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference to
the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. Any breach
or likely breach of the Guidelines must be reported to the
Financial Secretary. During the year, the Group complied
with all of the capital requirement set out in the Guidelines
by the Financial Secretary.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base
and the CAR of the Group as at the end of the reporting
period.

2014

FETT

HK$'000

N Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000

IR & A Retained profits 5,251,052 5,070,815

R A% B Proposed dividends (725,000) (350,000)

B\ Contingency reserve 1,632,660 1,437,745

H b fH A Other reserve 99,788 208,489
LA A A RS B RUR A Allowance for loan impairment under

FrtE2 B collective assessment 817 1,734

R Deductions (79,742) (36,118)

BAREE RS Total capital base 8,179,575 8,332,665

BEARFTRE Capital Adequacy Ratio 21.9% 23.5%
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EHMEERSMBERZHE

TREBE S REASENHBEAR AR
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3.8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain to
financial assets and financial liabilities that are not offset in
the Group's statement of financial position but are subject
to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar
agreements that cover similar financial instruments. The
disclosures enable the understanding of both the gross and
net amounts, as well as provide additional information on
how such credit risk is mitigated.

B EXFEAELFRBOBEE
BEEXEMGEAORNERE
&/ BESH -

* FEIEE R AR R SR B
HRNEMEE BE - BRERE
B 58 FEY  HIWIBREMN
DRAEEER EARRE S

RZE-5E+-A=1-H i mE+-A=1-H
As at 31 December 2015 As at 31 December 2014
RABRERENERRE
HEmeRE
Related amount
not set off not set off
in the statement ~ inthe statement
ABRREN of financial g ! of financial
"EEE position* : position*
Carrying Camyng ———
amounts B amounts
onthe fi44MIE HEERR onthe &
statementof  Derivative Cash FE statementof vative R
financial financial collateral Net financial financial collateral Net
position  instruments paid amount’ position instruments received amount*
ThR TH7R T THT T T ThT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
SHEE Financial assets
FEiESRIE  Postive fair values for
ATE derivative financial
instruments 473,403 (344,085) - 129,318 556,962 (348,281) (20,750) 187,931
SRER Financial liabilities
BEMTESRIE  Negative fair values for
NYE derivative financial
instruments 1,821,927 (344,085) (45,958) 1,431,884 1,575,968 (348,281) = 1,207,687
# [FEABAE Y R EM BRI R Y S # Amounts under “Related amount not set off in the statement of

financial position” represent the amounts of financial liabilities/assets
position that are subject to netting arrangements or similar agreements
including CSA.

* Net amount represents financial assets/liabilities that are subject
to netting arrangements or similar agreements but the Group’s
counterparty does not have equivalent financial liabilities/assets
position with the Group to offset upon default.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

41.

4.2,

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment
on a regular basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans
before the decrease can be identified with an individual
loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable
data indicating that there has been an adverse change in
the payment status of borrowers in a group or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the
group. Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in
the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

The carrying amount of loan portfolio as at 31 December
2015 is disclosed in Note 20.

Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in
active markets are determined by using valuation techniques.
Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used
to determine fair value, they are validated and periodically
reviewed by qualified personnel independent of the area
that created them. All models are validated before they
are used, and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs
reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the
extent practical, models use only observable data. Sensitivity
analysis for market rate movement is set out in Note 3.3.

The carrying amount of derivative financial instruments as at
31 December 2015 is disclosed in Note 19.
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4.3.

4.4,

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments
are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination
of what is significant or prolonged requires judgement. In
making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the normal volatility in listed price. In addition,
impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence
of deterioration in the financial health of the investment,
industry and sector performance, changes in technology,
and operational and financing cash flows.

The carrying amount of available-for-sale investments as at
31 December 2015 is disclosed in Note 21(a).

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to
hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for the specific
circumstances defined in HKAS 39 such as due to significant
deterioration of such investments or selling close to maturity,
it will be required to reclassify the entire class as available-
for-sale and measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

The carrying amount of held-to-maturity investments as at
31 December 2015 is disclosed in Note 21(b).
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5. EEH 5. Segment information
AREBTBEEFANERBHEBES & The Group is principally engaged in mortgage related businesses
TS - Pl AREE S AR AIRBER in Hong Kong. Other activities such as debt issuance to fund the
MEITER LR Ri§RIBEERKEFIE mortgage purchase and investment to reinvest the surplus funds
FMEANBBRESETHRE S A1LHB from mortgage receipt are considered ancillary to mortgage
XGEHMBEL - NEBIER —(ERE - business. The Group is also organised in such a way that resource
BERUIZBHEBEBIERE —DHERE allocation and performance measurement are based on the Group
BE R B &S - as a whole in a single segment for mortgage related businesses.

6. FEWA 6. Interestincome

2015 2014
THET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
EXHEE Loan portfolio 240,202 329,292
HeREHES Cash and short-term funds 207,807 230,482
FHHIRE Investment securities 390,487 342,592
838,496 902,366

7. FBXH 7. Interest expense

2015 2014

FERT THETT
HK$°000 HK$'000

AR EARESEBHEITE S KR Bank loans and debt securities issued

BEITERES wholly repayable within 5 years 207,909 236,742
HERAFRNBEHBEENE377E Debt securities issued and other
BH M EAM not wholly repayable within 5 years 40,259 14,669
248,168 251,411
REEMBELZHBIE247 BB T(ZT—N Included within interest expenses are HK$247 million (2014:
£ 5 BB T WIEU AT EE (L AR HK$250 million) for financial liabilities that are not at fair value
HHSRAE - through profit or loss.
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8. HIBRMEIERERFDUEEIR 8. Revenue account for mortgage insurance and

guarantee business

2015 2014
FHET FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000

FRE (KzE (@) M zE27()) Gross premiums written (Note (a) and
Note 27(a)) 319,137 320,789
BREBRE (HE27@)) Reinsurance premiums (Note 27(a)) (47,886) (39,023)
REe & 558 (fi3E27(a)) Net premiums written (Note 27(a)) 271,251 281,766
Rom AR E KR 558 Decrease in unearned premiums, net 107,362 152,330
BmHR B F5E (K15 27(a)) Net premiums earned (Note 27(a)) 378,613 434,096

RO (EE)FHE Net claims written back/(incurred)

(3£ 27(0)) (Note 27(b)) 7.583 (10,144)
R E mERE 5 Net premiums earned after provisions 386,196 423,952
kg Commission expenses (98,933) (128,934)
BREATRENASSE Reinsurers’ share of commission

expenses 15,565 18,125
HeZ HFR Net commission expenses (83,368) (110,809)
MNBREERAZAMNE mEARE Net premiums earned before

it management expenses 302,828 313,143
B (K5 D) Management expenses (Note (b)) (71,149) (57,465)
AR Underwriting gains 231,679 255,678

BiaE - Notes:

() ERBTIBRERIBEBREL  NEARE (a) Gross premiums were mainly derived from mortgage insurance cover on
RN RIEETOEERMIERSE  BERK mortgage loans with a small portion of guarantee fees written from guarantee
B2 RIEERMAEER2MEEMm business on loans to SMEs and non-listed enterprises, premiums written from
T TENEIEN —BREXNRE - mortgage insurance cover on reverse mortgage loans and on lump-sum loans

to owners of properties of subsidised housing schemes primarily for land
premium settlement.

b) SIEY AN 108L T B —25 o (b) Management expenses formed part of the operating expenses in Note 10.
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9. HulgA 9. Other income
2015 2014
F#&x T 7T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REENE R RBHSIR Early prepayment fees and late charges 774 1,233
&5 =% Exchange difference (38,708) (12,575)
SR TEA T EES)FE Net change in fair value of financial
instruments (11,763) (3,541)
ATt & ETIRE R AR B Dividend income from available-for-sale
listed investments 72,748 34,512
HERE MW F 58 (T 12) Net gains on disposal of investments
(Note 12) 122,010 58,632
HE WM A E B EMM BT Gain on disposal of a subsidiary classified
e (FTEE13) as assets held for sale (Note 13) - 12,991
EHih Others (2,235) (1,907)
142,826 89,345

SRTAAFEZHEERUTSHENLE
M:EEALAFEHFMEFTARTFE
EE1B332EBIT( T — M4 : 10.561E
7B IL) R EHRIE B A ERES3.28 BT
(ZZ 4 : 10601858 7T) + K () RFE
RAREF I EANTETARFERIE
14008 (=T — M4 : 1,0008 7% 7T)
RIEEARFEZ LT ABRNEEITE
BBH AT EKZE00EBT(ZT—MEF :
200 &% 7T) °

Change in fair value of financial instruments represented
the aggregate of (i) HK$332 million fair value loss on hedging
instruments designated as fair value hedge (2014: HK$1,056
million) and HK$328 million fair value gain on the hedged items
(2014: HK$1,060 million); and (i) HK$14 million fair value loss on
derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting purposes (2014:
HK$10 million) and HK$6 million fair value gain on debt securities
issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2014:
HK$2 million).
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10. &M 10. Operating expenses

2015 2014
Tz FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEKRA Staff costs
He MEF Salaries and benefits 158,677 148,618
RIRERA — REHEKETE Pension costs — defined contribution
plans 9,313 8,689
WAE Premises
e Rental 30,966 30,497
Efh Others 6,509 8,803
EEME Directors’ emoluments = =
I (Mizk24) Depreciation (Note 24) 17,772 24,841
B & RS Financial information services 6,075 5,726
FAR & Consultancy fees 11,364 6,749
Hihs g Other operating expenses 25,972 21,704
266,648 255,627
1. ZERHENE 11. Auditor’s remuneration
2015 2014
T FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
1% 25 R Bl <& Auditor’s remuneration
EAZRTE Audit services 1,433 1,378
B b AR %5 Other services 314 308
1,747 1,686
12. HERESHKZEFEE 12. Net gains on disposal of investments

HEREN K EFRE Net gains on disposal of investments:
— BN — A — B 2R #EARER — realisation of amounts recognised in

#9738 (Fi5E30) reserves up to 1 January (Note 30) 129,989 63,023
— ANEEEABEFR — net losses arising in current year (7,979) (4,391)

122,010 58,632
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13. EJE%EH%EQEE’JWE’A

AEELERKCRATHEERAERA
AINMAERENLZHER —T—HF—H
—tHEAZER ERERENRI17ER
T MEZRBNBEEMABLT :

13. Disposal of a subsidiary classified as assets
held for sale

The Group completed the sale of all its equity in Bauhinia HKMC
Limited (BHKMC) on 24 January 2014, at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$117 million. The following are the assets and
liabilities of BHKMC disposed of:

TAT
HK$'000

mENEE Current assets 130,106
nBAE Current liabilities (384)
HERFEE Net assets disposed of 129,722
REHIE e (F95E30) Cumulative translation reserve (Note 30) (13,104)
RIS AR R Non-controlling interests (12,972)
& e (FisE9) Gain on disposal (Note 9) 12,991

~E Consideration 116,637

HEREERRSRHIFER

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:

THETT
HK$'000

HEREB Cash consideration 116,637
HEMReREHES Cash and short-term funds disposed of (129,342)
(12,705)

14. SERBEBIR (8)

allowances

14. Write-back/(charge) of loan impairment

2015 2014

FET TR
HK$°000 HK$'000

BERRER R (BE)
— A FHE (HFEE20(0)
(Note 20(b))

Write-back/(charge) of loan impairment
allowances — collective assessment

242 (906)
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15. #IE

(a) REFEWRRMIOBRBBIES :

15. Taxation

(a)

Taxation charge in the consolidated income
statement represents:

BEFEH Hong Kong profits tax

— & BT — Current income tax 57,427 60,987

— BAAFERE — Adjustment in respect of prior years (13,190) (10,389)
44,237 50,598

BB LAINRIE Taxation outside Hong Kong

— BHRER — Current income tax = 1,263

EERIE Deferred taxation

— AFEXLGRE) — Charge/(credit) for current year 187 (924)
44,424 50,937

A E L MG AT E R R R IR
16.5% ( = Z — MU 4F : 16.5%) By Fi =K
FTRBABNETRE - HREBHN
INEERKTB AR - FIRAMERRY
RBEANTETE - BLEFBELAE
SER16.5%(ZF — M F - 16.5%) H
TERRFE LT -

RNEBMBRB RN F T IEEEA R
BHEGTENERSENEZENT ¢

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. For subsidiary operating outside Hong Kong, tax
rate prevailing in the relevant country was used. Deferred
taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5%
(2014: 16.5%).

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

Rk 5 BT ) Profit before taxation 769,576 796,910
£ 16.5% (—ZF—P04F : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%

MR E (2014: 16.5%) 126,980 131,490
WG & - Tax effect of:
— BB N R R = — different tax rate outside Hong Kong - (880)
— AU — income not subject to taxation (99,817) (90,015)
— N IF AR — expenses not deductible for

taxation purposes 30,451 20,731

— BEFEHRE — adjustment in respect of prior years (13,190) (10,389)
FIER S Taxation charge 44,424 50,937
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(b) BHABRKARANBIEEES : (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial
position represents:
2014
T
HK$'000
EHHIEEE Current income tax assets
(BERTHMBEEIA) (included in “Other assets”) 1,115 -
EHKIEEE Current income tax liabilities 129,153 133,301
RIETIA A& Deferred income tax liabilities 37,093 76,298
166,246 209,599
RZB—RAFE+-_A=1+—HBR=-Z There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
—MFE+=—A=+—H  WEEME 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.
AABERLERHE -
RSB (CEE) BENEEAK The major components of deferred income tax (assets)/
DREREFHIAT liabilities and the movements during the year are as follows:
HERE
MEBERE  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances ATEEE BemE
tax and Fair value Cash flow g
depreciation provisions changes hedges Total
TAL TEL AL AL AL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W=Z-mE-A-H Asat 1 January 2014 5468 (4,857) 57,551 (1,006) 57,156
RBERR (FA)/ 1% (Credited)/charged to the
income Statement (1,961) 1,037 - - (924)
MER A IR (13 30) Charged to equity (Note 30) - - 19,595 471 20,066
WZZ—ME+-FA=1+—H Asat31December 2014 3,507 (3,820) 77,146 (535) 76,298
PERA(FA) /4B (Credited)/charged to the
income Statement (393) 580 - - 187
PMERA(BA)/Hk (Credited)/charged to equity
(Hi730) (Note 30) - - (39.927) 535 (39.392)
R-Z-1%+=-A=+-H Asat31December 2015 3,114 (3,240) 37,219 - 37,093
RTZEAA - EEFEREERIE There is no significant amount of deferred income tax assets/
BE/ABERELE - liabilities to be settled within 12 months.
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16. I8 16. Dividends

2015 2014

FET TAET
HK$°000 HK$'000

HOR L E AL B F IR T @A 0.3625  Proposed ordinary dividend of HK$0.3625

BT (ZZF—WUF : 0.175%87T) (2014: HK$0.175) per ordinary share 725,000 350,000
RZZE—AFN_ZT—NEFEMH_Z The dividends paid in 2015 and 2014 in respect of 2014 and 2013
—MEN—Z—=FEREHHAISEE were HK$350 million (ordinary dividend of HK$0.175 per ordinary
T(E@MKRBEREBAK0.175%8 L) & 15 share) and HK$1,500 million (ordinary dividend of HK$0.25 per
BB (E B EETRIT AR 0.25 BT K ordinary share and special dividend of HK$0.5 per ordinary share)
BIAE B FREBAR0SHE L) c RZZT—~ respectively. The directors proposed, in respect of 2015, an
FUMAZ+HB EFRBRE_ZT—F ordinary dividend of HK$0.3625 per ordinary share on 25 April
FEBREFRERKZ036255BTIL - HEE 2016. The proposed dividend is not reflected as dividend payable
FEEIREREE BRI EN T2 AE until approval by shareholders.

RS ©
17. IREREHES 17. Cash and short-term funds
2015 2014
FE T FHIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RITIRE Cash at banks 68,535 523,620
RITEHTER Time deposits with banks 20,938,832 17,897,870
21,007,367 18,421,490
HEAREEMS B4 NRERBE4SEE For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
BENTERS BHE=FERISHN equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three
LEBA o months’ maturity from the date of transaction.

RITHR S Cash at banks 68,535 523,620
RITERTER Time deposits with banks 7,694,015 7,890,292
BehZERBESER Cash and cash equivalents 7,762,550 8,413,912
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18. FEWFI B R EERR

AT B IR R A 2

18.

Interest and remittance receivables

2015 2014
TAT

HK$'000

Tz
HK$'000

Interest receivable from

— MEEHELD — interest rate swap contracts 140,599 142,224

— RBHEKE — investment securities 110,473 91,625

— SRITEHER — time deposits with banks 35,218 45,531
EREEREYH B ko EAfTEL  Interest receivable and instalments,

in transit from loan portfolio 40,488 71,471

326,778 350,851

4=

)

(a)

$E&MTH

FTETRIER

REEEABTIITET RS HALKE
B & Bl o

¥R EERLGA-ERSRER
Bn—HREREAFGE - HHEHK
B RN KA MEAS OB - fRE
TEB=MIN - ZEXZH TS RESR
g  ARENEERRARZHTF
REEBTHECMEERHREONE
ERA - REBRBEENEBERZ S

HFRBREEES - FESNFER
|§A
ETRESRTIANEERESE AN

BRI R AR A T AR — A&
EVEE - HERMRERS R ARRIRE
mENESRKXTAERNATE
Bt YT EERRAEEEENEER
ERER - BEE TI5M X REXFY
HAGKRRE - TET AR AL
BELEN(BE) LT (ARE) W
TR NESRMIANGASERS
B DRBNITAFEEE -

RITETASREERABE IR FE
18 > AIBE NI AR ED © PIRF A HODT

ETAERFEHNT -

19. Derivative financial instruments

(a)

Use of derivative

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to
hedge the Group's financial risks.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an exchange of currencies or interest rates or a combination
of all these. No exchange of principal takes place except
for certain currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts
if counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis under a prudent treasury
counterparty risk management framework.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial
instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments
recognised on the statement of financial position but do
not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair value of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or
price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to
their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amounts
of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus
the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The
fair values of derivative instruments held are set out below.
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'3%"1/ (=)
e4 52 AYE A ATE
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values

notional BE g% notional BE af&
amounts Assets Liabilities amounts Assets Liabilities

TR FET FHT THT T THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

() THAFAEREH AN () Derivatives not qualified as hedges

fIAETE for accounting purposes
s Interest rate swaps 374,895 18,800 (478) 1259611 25,130 (494)
EisH Currency swaps - - - 699,815 4,568 -
18,800 (478) 29,698 (494)
(i) ATEERTETE (i) Fair value hedge derivatives
Fil= Interest rate swaps 14,227,500 454,279 (1,811) 10,327,500 511,217 9,724)
et currency swaps 14,569,037 324 (1,819,638) 18,989,855 16047 (1,565,750)
454,603 (1,821,449) 5071264 (1575,474)
BRATETESE/(RfE)  Total recognised derivative
as assets/(liabilities) 473,403 (1,821,927) 556962 (1,575968)
(b) HiHES (b) Hedging activities
WPTETEIER R FEE RSN Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
i REEEmME  STETEA they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. The Group’s
IRERFE E B - AEENATE fair value hedge principally consists of interest rate and
i ZRIEARNRERD BITER currency swaps that are used to protect interest rate risk
BHE N THENEREEZ B PT5|EH and foreign currency risk resulting from any potential change
V1 2 [ e R0 91 J22L e ) ) SR R0 B 4 in fair value of underlying debt securities issued. There were
H-RZE—AF+-_A=+—HK no derivatives designated as cash flow hedges as at 31
—E-E+-F=+—1  WEF December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

AEENREREPITETA o
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20. ERREEFHE
(a) EREEREEE

20. Loan portfolio, net

(a) Loan portfolio less allowance

2015

THxT
HK$'000

2014
TAT
HK$'000

ZIBE A Mortgage portfolio
x= Residential
— &8 — Hong Kong 10,935,170 13,178,873
— 8o — Overseas - 695,229
[(SES commercial - 1,000,000
ERBERES Non-mortgage portfolio 567,959 699,281
11,503,129 15,573,383
BB EEE Allowance for loan impairment (817) (1,734)
11,502,312 15,571,649

Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as
follows:

2015 2014

,\,TA/HZTE%?%ﬁ %ﬁfrﬁ Ysk4E4  Total allowance for loan impairment

EFRERBEBLHERES HARE
BATEHRNA LT

FEEEONERS) as a percentage of the gross
loan portfolio 0.01% 0.01%
(b) RIBEFEENEETIREEE (b) Allowance for loan impairment on loan portfolio
2015 2014
FET FH&TT
HK$°000 HK$'000
HEF Collective assessment
n—A—H As at 1 January 1,734 1,825
N EEANNAEIE P (Released)/charged to
(Ff3E14) income statement (Note 14) (242) 906
W E R Loans written off (2,202) (2,457)
e [B] 2 4 85 & 5K Recoveries of loans previously
written off 1,527 1,460
W+=—B=+—H As at 31 December 817 1,734
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EH EFURERER - BZBER® Allowance for loan impairment has been made after taking

#ERITAE ° into account the current market value of the collateral.
A& B ER 2R EE RS Individually impaired loans collectively assessed on a
war portfolio basis are analysed as follows:
2014
FHET
HK$'000
WEERHES R Gross impaired loan portfolio 983 2,241
BEIURE RS Allowance for loan impairment (756) (713)
227 1,528
BEFCREREGREEZAS  Alowance for loan impairment as
BRI B DL a percentage of gross impaired
loan portfolio 76.9% 31.8%

HEERAS BREEERAS  Gross impaired loan portfolio as a
BRI A DL percentage of gross loan portfolio 0.01% 0.01%

LA AR S E AR B2 5B Allowance for loan impairment under
ENERFTESZOMERM  collective assessment for loans not

individually identified as impaired 61 1,021
(c) ERESHHNMEHEREF (c) Net investments in finance leases included in loan
# portfolio
2015
RIEERBELD RIRHAE REEKAL
FIERE FMEWA MIHMAEE
Present value Interest Total
of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
TET TET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JiE U 7R Amounts receivable:
——FR" — within one year 47,001 9,863 56,864
——FREAFA — after one year but within
five years 173,387 30,780 204,167
—HEF% — after five years 330,027 38,339 368,366

550,415 78,982 629,397
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2014
RIEERIL R IR ERFE /Y RIEEKAEL
FIABE FSIA BB
Present value [EEN Total
of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
FET FHET FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEUEIE Amounts receivable:
——FR — within one year 60,348 12,052 72,400
——FRERFNA — after one year but within
five years 214,767 37,431 252,198
— RF% — after five years 403,765 46,377 450,142
678,880 95,860 774,740
RANBERERWFIEELEFUR No allowance for loan impairment has been provided for
BRE - finance lease receivable.
21. EBHK/E 21. Investment securities
(a) TSIt ERESH (a) Available-for-sale securities
2015 2014
THET T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
BAF AR ERES Debt securities at fair value
REE L™ Listed in Hong Kong 224,082 184,647
REBEIN LT Listed outside Hong Kong 807,716 117,882
JEET Unlisted 3,267,479 4,447 544
RN BT IR E H A 5 5 Other securities at fair value
REB LT Listed in Hong Kong 2,339,090 984,089
Y EFESERE Total available-for-sale securities 6,638,367 5,734,162
HEmELSERSMEBEES RFEE Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real
HEETES - estate investment trusts.
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RETHEEN ST EEEZ S Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of
T @ issuers as follows:

RIT M E M & RS Banks and other financial institutions 3,453,212 3,652,863
/NG Corporate entities 655,380 412,563
AR BUT Central governments 175,148 684,647
N T Public sector entities 15,537 -
HAith Others 2,339,090 984,089
6,638,367 5,734,162
AR EF SN e T ¢ The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised
as follows:

2015 2014

THET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

R—H—H As at 1 January 5,734,162 3,860,455
0 Additions 4,265,100 6,034,625

HERER Sale and redemption (3,240,614) (4,329,074)
b Amortisation 3,423 1,019
N EEE Change in fair value (111,566) 178,161

GNEEE 5, 2= KA Exchange difference (12,138) (11,024)
R+—_A=+—H As at 31 December 6,638,367 5,734,162
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(b) FHEEINHEH (b) Held-to-maturity securities
2014
T4
HK$'000
L S AR AN IR Y (B 75 75 5 Debt securities at amortised cost
RESA LT Listed in Hong Kong 4,430,543 2,972,947
RBEBFINE™ Listed outside Hong Kong 1,685,300 2,190,400
6,115,843 5,163,347
JEETM Unlisted 4,158,158 4,005,448
BAERYHESERE Total held-to-maturity securities 10,274,001 9,168,795
IRESTHIE SR DT 2 5 BRI & Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of
I issuers as follows:
2014
T
HK$'000
RIT M E & R E Banks and other financial institutions 5,569,556 5,341,979
NEITEE Corporate entities 3,954,900 3,047,015
NEHEE Public sector entities 678,756 680,650
AR B Central governments 70,789 99,151
10,274,001 9,168,795
B SR AN E M T The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised
as follows:
2015 2014
FHET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
n—A—H As at 1 January 9,168,795 8,560,595
30 Additions 2,112,356 2,624,340
fED Redemption (956,997) (1,973,405)
T 5 Amortisation (10,951) (9,414)
AN = RE Exchange difference (39,202) (33,321)
R+=—B=+—H As at 31 December 10,274,001 9,168,795
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22. BASIRE

R-TE—RAF+-_A=+—8 KQAFHW
B AREBNT

TR Lt
Place of
incorporation

BRHIBERARAR &

HKMC Mortgage Management Limited  Hong Kong

BARBILARE () ERAA  FA
HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited* - Hong Kong

Bauhinia MBS Limited* FHEES

Bauhinia MBS Limited* Cayman Islands

BB EEREERAH i

HKMC Credit & Guarantee Corporation Hong Kong
Limited

Hong Kong Mortgage Credit & ik
Guarantee Corporation Limited

Hong Kong Mortgage Credit & Hong Kong

Guarantee Corporation Limited

* RIBEECARRDDHI R - BLERRBIE
BERMEBELE MARTILEREELER
AR

22. Interests in subsidiaries

The details of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December

2015 are:
HARMN
WEAR
(FHREA)
BAT Frs R A8
BETRARRAFE (FHKEA) A%
(R tER) Fiits  Percentage of
Particulars of issued Percentage of  shares held by
and fully paid up shares held by  the Company's
TEER share capital the Company subsidiary
Principal activities (Class of Share) (or its nominee)  (or its nominee)
BAREREBEDA 1,000,000% 7c (LK) 100% TER
RIEEFNRE
Mortgage purchasesand ~ HK$1,000,000 (Qrdinary) 100% N/A

servicing, and funding of
microfinance loans

RIZ-REVEFHRED 100087 (ERKR) TER TER
No business activity in 2015¢  HK$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
RIE-RETEHREY 1,002 (EER) TER TR
No business activity in 2015¢  US$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
TEEMEE 1AL (ERR) T 100%
Dormant HK$1 (Ordinary) N/A 100%
TEEMRE 1B (EER) TEm 100%
Dormant HK$1 (Ordinary) N/A 100%
& These companies are subsidiary undertakings as defined in Schedule 1 of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Company does not hold shares in
these companies.

W These companies were set up for mortgage purchases and mortgage-backed
securities issuance.
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23. FEIRIE - IR R HEMEE 23. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

2015 2014
THET TFETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
W [0 & & Repossessed assets 65 1,151
NEEHEES Corporate club debentures 750 750
E Others 86,424 18,323
87,239 20,224
24, EIEEE 24. Fixed assets
WAERE
BRRER
Office
RENELE  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture i Motor g
improvement  and fixtures  Computers vehicle Total
BT THL THL THL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W-E-mF—HF—H Net book amount as at
IREFE 1 January 2014 14,917 1,894 27,062 212 44,085
NE Additions 9,403 540 5922 - 15,865
& (i3 10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (6,405) (851) (17,479) (106) (24,841)
RZZE-WF+=-FA=+—H Nethook amount asat
IRE S8 31 December 2014 17915 1,583 15,505 106 35,109
NE Additions 142 213 8,588 350 9,293
& (fz10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (6153 (624) (10,831) (164) (17.772)
R=ZE-RF+-A=1+-H Netbook amount as at
IRE R 31 December 2015 11,904 1,172 13,262 292 26,630
R-ZZ-FEF+=-A=t-H Asat31December 2015
XAE Cost 27,803 7,628 166,746 1,000 203,177
ZEE Accumulated depreciation (15,899) (6,456) (153,484) (708) (176,547)
REFH Net book amount 11,904 1,172 13,262 292 26,630
WZE-ME+=A=+—H Asat31December 2014
RAE Cost 27,661 7,701 161,242 650 197,254
ZEHME Accumulated depreciation 9,746) (6,118) (145,737) (544) (162,145)
REFE Net book amount 17915 1,583 15,505 106 35,109
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25. FEFHFIR

25. Interest payable

2015 2014

FET TAET
HK$°000 HK$'000

AT B IER RS

Interest payable from

— BRITEBES — debt securities issued 159,643 128,317
— FEEHHE L — interest rate swap contracts 10,056 14,494
—HpEE — other liabilities 1,154 1,233

170,853 144,044

26. FE{TIRIE - FEfTRHIZ R EME 26. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
= liabilities

2015 2014

THET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE IR T8 K2 FE A~ R 2 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 46,838 112,439
HEMEE Other liabilities 4,717,601 4,658,279
E b Other provision 30,984 28,860
4,795,423 4,799,578

Hiv B ERET/NEREERTE TR
RlIEEEEMKEINERE (BHNREREK
FE 8B 57 ) 460,447,000 7T (=T — PO 4 ¢
431,680,0007% 7T ) (HiE34) « B KR IEAR
—EE=F+-AR_ETNE-FARK
FIEERMIZBEREE LT H N8 ERiE
FE X (B 4,257,154,0008 7o ( = ZF — 9 4 :
4,226,599,0003% 7T )

Other liabilities represented the guarantee fee received (net
of claims and related expenses) of HK$460,447,000 (2014
HK$431,680,000) under the special concessionary measures of
the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (Note 34) and the deferred
consideration of HK$4,257,154,000 (2014 HK$4,226,599,000) used
for credit enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from
the Government in December 2003 and January 2004.
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27. RIGEBRBRIGEE 27. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

2015
£ B BR 8 BIRR AR

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
TER TEL TEL Tr T THr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RnBRERERERER Provision for unearned premiums and
guarantee fees 943,685 125,243 818,442 1,066,272 140,468 925,804
RREAREE Provision for outstanding claims
— B8/ (k@) BE — claims reported/(recovery) 9,771 (1) 9,772 15,652 @] 15,656
—BELERRREZR — claims incurred but not reported 25,389 3,411 21,978 30,165 3715 26,450
35,160 3,410 31,750 45317 3/ 42,106
978,845 128,653 850,192 1,112,089 144,179 967,910
(a) FAHRERERERREGS (a) Analysis of movement in provision for unearned
o HmT premiums and guarantee fees
2015
2 BRR BE £24 5 38
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
FHx TATL Thn TAL TEL B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
itz = Asat 1 January 1,066,272 140,468 925,804 1,253,398 175,764 1,078,134
BIERE (fi:E8) Premiums written (Note 8) 319,137 47,886 271,251 320,789 39,023 281,766
BRERE (1) Premiums earned (Note 8) (441,724)  (63,111)  (378,613) (508415 (74319) (434,09¢)
M=A=1+-AH As at 31 December 943,685 125,243 818,442 1,066,272 140,468 925,804
(b) FABHEBEESISHONUOT (b) Analysis of movement in provision for outstanding
claims
2015
EX Bk ] 5 #
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross
Fx TARL ThRL TAL ) TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R—A—H Asat 1 January 45,817 3711 42,106 40,814 4978 35,836
BER Claims paid (3,051) - (3,051) (5,143) (420) (4,723)
ERERR Claims recovery 585 307 278 1,043 194 849
B(m%)/EEBz(FizE8)  Claims (written back)incurred (Note 8)
—DHEBBER — claims reported (3,415) (304) (3111) 11,59 24 1,372
—EELBRRERER — claims incurred but not reported (4,776) (304) (4,472) (2,493) (1,265) (1,228)
“t=R=1+-AH As at 31 December 35,160 3,410 31,750 45817 3 42,106
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(c) EfEFEA (c) Liability adequacy test

ETABERRAIEE ZRE2BEY The liability adequacy test considers current estimates
ReneERRREEEASHEBERE of all contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows
MEMREMGE  IRBERIRZ=ZZ such as claims handling costs, the test shows that, as at
—AFFTZA=T—HBRERZZ—NF 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Group's
TZA=+—H  AEENRER AR insurance liabilities are adequate.
TR
28. EEITEBES 28. Debt securities issued
2015 2014
FE T FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R AR A B0 Y 75 7 35 Debt securities carried at
amortised cost
T EAfE S MTN 5,681,736 5,108,688
IR TR BB A 4% Total debt securities carried at
amortised cost 5,681,736 5,108,688
fEEHEHIE R WL A FEYHH Debt securities designated as hedged
BES items under fair value hedge
B TRBEITFEIES DIP notes 4,925,563 5,526,332
FHEES MTN 22,512,514 22,298,908
$E T AT IE B 3 LA R FE 4 E) Total debt securities designated as hedged
BSE S5 ERE items under fair value hedge 27,438,077 27,825,240
RIBEREIEE S LA FESZ{L Debt securities designated as at
STABRENELERES fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition
BB LT AT EIES DIP notes 139,083 133,852
TEBHETEIMNEMES RBIP and other notes 204,315 202,349
RINIEHERE 8 E A LA A F{E% L Total debt securities designated as at
A B RRETSE 5B fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition 343,398 336,201
BERITEBESFAR Total debt securities issued 33,463,211 33,270,129
ERBHET(ZE—ME : &) RBE During the year, no debt securities (2014: nil) were designated on
e AT ES L A B R EEE initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. The fair
EomEsmBmy AT EEHENEE value changes are attributable to changes in benchmark interest
MR U E - RIIETERRE - 22 AUA rates for the debt securities designated as at fair value through
TESMEABSHSREBERE & profit or loss. The carrying amount of the financial liabilities
NEBERIEA 418 T A5 B /8 B 5 designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
B A XS 58 45,802,000 T (= F recognition is HK$45,802,000 (2014: HK$52,999,000) lower than the
—PO4E : 52,999,000 7T) ° amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the note holders.
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ZEEEAUATEIIENSBEA S
REAARZ EERBEH RETEA
B -

ERTEHESNESBANT

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes
in the credit risk of the Company for those financial liabilities
designated as at fair value.

The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

2014

T

HK$'000

R—A—8 As at 1 January 34,414,640 31,444,785

BT Issuance 23,046,815 30,467,972

o EE Less: Redemption (22,526,495) (27,524,884)

GNEEFE 5, = KA Exchange difference 2,808 26,767

HEEBEBRE Total nominal value 34,937,768 34,414,640

RIS D Unamortised portion of discount (118,179) (122,688)

NEEFE Fair value adjustment (1,356,378) (1,021,823)

Rt=A=+—H As at 31 December 33,463,211 33,270,129
NEFBITHES Notes issued during the year comprise:

BERTEEERE

Amount issued at nominal value 23,046,815

B UK ERFRIE

Consideration received 22,991,809

PIAEBEITHEREF DB A EEEER
BfE MBEOZEFEEEFEEREE R
BEETMEBRERE -

29. &

29.

All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the
Group, and are issued for the purposes of providing general
working capital and refinancing.

Share capital

2015 2014
TFHExT FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRHE - Issued and fully paid:
2018 E A% 2 billion ordinary shares 2,000,000 2,000,000
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30. HibhEEis 30. Other reserves

B NVHERE HHRE BN wE
Contingency Fair value Hedging Translation &g

reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
A7 T T 7 T
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZE-mE-A—-H As at 1 January 2014 1,213,827 290,605 (5,089)¢ 13,104 1,512,448

AEHERSNATESES :  Changeinfair value of available-for-sale

securities:

— RER T — net unrealised gains - 178,161 - - 178,161

— HERER (f312) — realisation on disposal (Note 12) - (63,023) - - (63,0239)

— g — amortisation* - 13 - - 13

— B3 (R 150) —tax effect (Note 15(0)) - (19,595) - = (19,599)
B : Cash flow hedges:

—BABBRNATERE  —fairvalue changes transferred to

income statement - - 2852 - 2852

— RE(MEE15(0) — tax effect (Note 15(0)) = = (@71) = (a71)
HERNERAFESENNE  Release of translation reserve on

REGRERE X A disposal of a subsidiary classified as

(BizE13) assets held for sale (Note 13) - - - (13,104) (13,104)
Et2EME/ (B58) Other comprehensive incomey/(loss) - 95,556 2,381 (13,104) 84,833

MERZHENERDRIBERRFEE  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
FERS0%HK75% ZERERE  premium earned from retained profits

to contingency reserve 242,407 = = = 242,407
HERFERDZREET Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (18,489) - - - (18,489)
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BRGE NTERE E2pl EXGE
Contingency Fair value Hedging Translation &g

reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
TEL TAL TAL TEL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-B-E+=A=+—0/ Asat31December 2014/

“Z-17%-A-H 1 January 2015 1,437,745 386,161 (2,707) - 1,821,199

AEHERLNATEES :  Changein fair value of available-for-sale
securities:

—AEBHEFE — net unrealised losses - (111,566) - - (111,566)

— HERER (i 12) — realisation on disposal (Note 12) - (129,989) - - (129,989)

— B35 (F3215(0) — tax effect (Note 15(0)) - 39,927 - - 39,927
RemE A Cash flow hedges

—BAMEROATEESE  —fair value changes transferred to

income statement - - 3,242 - 3242

— HA (MzE15(0) — tax effect (Note 15(b)) - - (539) - (535)

E2E(5B)/ e Other comprehensive (loss)/income - (201,628) 2,707 - (198921)

MREENEADTHREEREE Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
EIES0% K 5% ZEBEEE  premium earned from retained profits

to contingency reserve 221,244 - - - 221,244
mERREEERNZRE S Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (26,329) - - - (26,329
RZZ-RE+-A=+t—H Asat31December 2015 1,632,660 184,533 - - 1,817,193
@ HAHEEEAERETRERIAELAE K * the amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale
BIAEIE - RS R EESY o securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
# AT TBFER T —FRHIBHIFNIR # brought forward from cumulative loss then existing in hedging reserve when
SRS TSR Rt EE Atk 2% - cash flow hedges were de-designated in 2010 and 2011. Since then, no new
WRERITHRIIR S TR - cash flow hedge has been conducted.
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31. BAMEALIIMNEXRRS

(a)

ARRIHM B R B RAINEES B IR
ANEDPHER - RAREBAHEAL
RIM T ZIARS °

HERFEARETESREER (T
BEER) WX ZBETIIRE

() ARRERBBEAZERAE
EBNEHBTATREERGR
KRR EREERER
% W18 ET(ZE
—mF 1208 LBESD
BB ESARFEERAZRS
ME A

(il ANRAFRAKNFEEEE120S
BI(ZZF—M4 : 98085 T)
EHE  (FARBESERME
FAEIMER:

(i) ARBRAFEHNOEET
(ZZE—F: 6088 TE
BEER  ERRESMHR
BE MAFELERBRE
SHHER(ZZT—MF : 80
BB

vy R=ZZFE—RF+=-_A=+—
B AR RWEIZEREBIN
BESZE(ZZT—WF : 5
BIL) &

v HEESBEERZERAAN
A AR H300EB T BIRIE
E R-_ZE-—A"F+_-H
ST RIEEREEHRBE(Z
T—OF &) -

31. Material related party transactions

(a)

The Company is owned by the Financial Secretary of Hong
Kong as Controller of the Exchange Fund. The Company
entered into various transactions with the following related
parties.

Transactions with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(HKMA), a Government-related entity, included the following:

(i)  the Company subscribed to the custodian and clearing
agent services provided by the Central Moneymarkets
Unit Service operated by the HKMA and paid HK$1.5
million (2014: HK$1.2 million) by way of fees to the
HKMA for such services during the year;

(i) the Company incurred secondment fee of HK$12.8
million (2014: HK$9.8 million) for secondees from the
HKMA during the year;

(i) the Company paid back-up site service fee of HK$0.6
million (2014 HK$0.6 million) to the HKMA during the
year, and there was no payment (2014: HK$0.8 million)
for the relocation of back-up site to the HKMA during
the year;

(iv) the Company held no investment (2014: HK$500
million) in the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Bills as at 31
December 2015; and

(v)  the Exchange Fund through the HKMA had provided
the Company with a HK$30 billion Revolving Credit
Facility, and there was no outstanding balance as at 31
December 2015 (2014 nil).
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HERFNZHBRE TSR

() ARFEMHEAEREEHER
MAE - WEPBA R REZE
R RZE—EHFEH60
EETHETEECER B
ERRABMAENEERN -F
—mE—REW  ARERAE
FEBEINHeTELESE
IS

(i) ARRARAFERFEA K
EEBE2OEE T(ZZF
—MF 1.8 EET)IRIBEE

ET
A

(i) R—ZT—AE+-_A=+—
H  ARRWEEFEESK
MEHFEE(ZE—HF:
| NEEWEESTHEWA
(ZZ2—Mm4F : 1,020887T) :
&

(v, ARBEHRBEHF/NEEEEE
RetE RENEBBNERE
X R BB SRS R
B AYEF 51,0008 7T N
BRIERRENERERER
SEIBEE DRI EES4 -

HEENBRRBBRBEEERA
AR ZBETISIA

() ARFRKEANNEREE
A E 0 1218 AR R 1B R
% R

REFHRANZ2EHEH
RIT - RR/NEERTE 28
Bt o RS FER
BERARARBARNARHR
BETHE RfEmETRE#z
HHADHESR

Transactions with the Government included the following:

(i)  the Company rented office premises from The Financial
Secretary Incorporated (FSI) and paid rental of HK$0.6
million to the HKMA under the direction of the FSI in
2014. Following the expiry of the lease for the relevant
rented office premises in January 2014, no such rental
was paid to the HKMA by the Company during the
year,;

(i) the Company purchased mortgage loans of HK$209
million (2014: HK$108 million) from the FSI during the
year,

(i) the Company held no investment in the Hong Kong
Government Bonds as at 31 December 2015 (2014 nil)
and the interest income thereon during the year was
nil (2014: HK$10.2 million); and

(iv) the Company provided a loan guarantee product
with 80% guarantee coverage under the existing
SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (SFGS) at a
concessionary guarantee fee rate and up to a total loan
guarantee commitment of HK$100 billion reimbursable
by the Government with details set out in Note 34.

Transactions with HKMC Mortgage Management Limited
(HMML), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
included the following:

(i)  the Company provided mortgage insurance cover for
mortgage loans purchased by such subsidiary in the
course of the Company’s ordinary business; and

(i)  the Company as scheme operator, HMML and various
participating banks as loan originators entered into
loan participation agreements under the Microfinance
Scheme pursuant to which HMML would fund all or
part of the microfinance loans as funding vehicle for
the Company.
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Rt-A=1t—BRMNBEEEALH

The balances of the amounts due to the relevant related

FEfRT SRR INT parties as at 31 December are as follows:
B
The Government
2015 2014
THET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEmEE (H5E26) Other liabilities (Note 26) 4,717,601 4,658,279
(b) EEEEEBAE (b) Key management personnel

TEREEERERAEEBEEIRA
ARE HELMEHAREEBHA
T BREERSREEAS -

RERFREREABNHMELE

FrehEMEREE RN

Key management are those persons having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including
directors and senior officers.

Key management personnel compensation for the year
comprised:

2015 2014
FATT
HK$'000

FHBxT
HK$'000

Salaries and other short-term

employee benefits 18,859 17,666
BER 1212 T Post-employment benefits 1,633 1,500
20,492 19,166
32. F*&iE 32. Commitments
(a) &= (a) Capital

EH#EERRTH

Authorised but not contracted for

2015 2014
TAT
HK$'000

FERT
HK$'000

8,172 10,462
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(b) #EEFHLH (b) Operating lease
REMEAR - BB FHO LS Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
HMAELHRREERS BT operating lease at the end of the reporting period are
DT : analysed as follows:
2015 2014
FET FA&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
WAEYE Office premises
— P EZR—F — not later than one year 32,458 30,911
— ZR—FEFZRAF — later than one year and not
later than five years 29,753 62,212
62,211 93,123
33. 1RIBRIGETS 33. Mortgage insurance business
RZZE—RAFETZA=+—0 AEEHD As at 31 December 2015, the total risk-in-force of the Group is
R RIRAERE A R I1SMER T (ZF —4F - approximately HK$13.4 billion (2014: HK$13.1 billion) of which
131188 7T)  Eh 21 EBT(ZT—m4E : HK$2.1 billion (2014: HK$2.1 billion) is ceded to the approved
21188 7T) BEAZEBRRAREE BR reinsurers and the balance of HK$11.3 billion (2014: HK$11 billion)
% AR E B BITAERT 1M3EET is retained by the Group.
(ZZ—mF : 11085 T) AR -
R13EBT(ZZE—MUE : 1M10EET) B Out of the HK$11.3 billion (2014: HK$11 billion) of risk-in-force
AREFAENREBERBEST  3EBT retained by the Group, the excess loss of HK$0.3 billion (2014
(=T : 78870 BB IS (REE M REE HK$0.7 billion) of risk-in-force is hedged through the use of excess-
BADBEBERBEBABRENLTHS of-loss reinsurance arrangement to reinsure the middle layer
/[ B &9 R B (B 5 - AN EE B FT IR B8 26 risk positions, and the Group retains a portion of the total risk
SRR - BIEE X E SRR ] R 1% comprising the first-loss and remote risk portions.

KRR
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34. h/h R E R IRET ST 8% 5l

BEEE

ARRRBREF/NERERRTE - 52
HIABBHERERT R B BT E
B R IRE ANERE 23 1,000 {878 7T R AR AR
REENEREREMR - HLEFHEEE
REMAMBIMERE  SEXZBARN
AR ZRENREBR - A
ARG BEER TR o ATV E R B A
RABMEBRZRENER BT S AR
B AARIARHEMNEEYRIER
BEERX

BEREEARINERERER  BAKH
M RERABREREROEA - 2
MREXEMCEREBERASLRETE -
ERNARBRRRRBTEEZER » &
S ERSA BRI E a0 LR AR 2115 B R
BT » Bt - ZEMORRAELLFT
RAKENEERERINER  RIFMIK
AR RMENERT R XS IEAME
A EARENR o

34. Special concessionary measures under the SME

Financing Guarantee Scheme

The Company provided a loan guarantee product with 80%
guarantee coverage under the existing SFGS at a concessionary
guarantee fee rate and up to a total loan guarantee commitment
of HK$100 billion reimbursable by the Government. All guarantee
fees collected under this special loan guarantee product are set
aside to meet the relevant default claims and related out-of-pocket
expenses. The remaining balance of the guarantee fees, if any, will
be returned to, and any shortfall will be borne by, the Government.
The Company is responsible for the operation of the product and
the applicable day-to-day operating costs.

Regarding this special loan guarantee product, there is no impact
on the consolidated income statement of the Group in respect
of guarantee fee revenue, default claims or any direct expenses
involved. Given that the Company operates only this product
for the Government, the Group considers the risk and rewards
associated with this product rest with the Government. Hence, the
risk-in-force for this product has not been included as the Group’s
off-balance sheet exposures and no capital charge is required
under the Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio approved by the
Financial Secretary.
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35. ANSTIMMBIRA TR EHEE 35. Statement of financial position and reserve
£3)] movement of the Company

BNIAEATFHR_F—HE+ZH 35.1 Statement of financial position of the Company as at
=+—HWEBERRAE 31 December 2015
2014
FETT
HK$'000
BE ASSETS
Be MEHES Cash and short-term funds 20,998,850 18,420,026
FEULF B K PE FR Interest and remittance
receivables 319,481 341,436
TSI A Derivative financial instruments 473,403 556,962
BEREEF5E Loan portfolio, net 7,635,764 11,033,066
BHEE Investment securities:
— AHEE — available-for-sale 6,638,367 5,734,162
— EEE R H — held-to-maturity 10,274,001 9,168,795
M A RRE Interests in subsidiaries 3,690,964 4,377,944
FEREIE e MEMEE  Prepayments, deposits and
other assets 86,197 19,168
B TEEE Fixed assets 26,630 35,109
BiRREE Reinsurance assets 128,740 144,399
EEHAE Total assets 50,272,397 49 831,067
=Fi LIABILITIES
FERHFIE Interest payable 170,853 144,044
FERIRIE « BRAS R Accounts payable, accrued
EMaE expenses and other liabilities 4,795,133 4,799,400
THESRTIA Derivative financial instruments 1,821,927 1,575,968
EHRIEAE Current income tax liabilities 129,153 133,099
EERIEEE Deferred income tax liabilities 36,992 76,098
Rz BEE Insurance liabilities 979,549 1,113,683
BETERES Debt securities issued 33,463,211 33,270,129
EEH8E Total liabilities 41,396,818 41,112,421
R EQUITY
R A AE(SIRZAS R4 Capital and reserves attributable to
the equity holders:
iy Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000
REB & T Retained profits 35.2 5,058,386 4,897,447
[\ [ fE Contingency reserve 35.2 1,632,660 1,437,745
NEEEE Fair value reserve 35.2 184,533 386,161
e Hedging reserve 35.2 - (2,707)
EREE Total equity 8,875,579 8,718,646
EEREREE Total liabilities and equity 50,272,397 49,831,067
FEREN-_ZE—EWA_+HE Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 April
oA R IERETIAT © 2016.
BER Norman T. L. Chan ! Raymond L. C. Li

T EF#FS77EZE  Deputy Chairman and Executive Director — #i77E E#42%  Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
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35.2 AATIFE

35.2 Reserves of the Company

RERT BBk AVERE et
Retained  Contingency Fair value Hedging 23
profits reserve reserve reserve Total
TEx TEx T Tibn Tin
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=F-NE-A-AH Asat 1 January 2014 5,898,977 1,213,827 290,605 (5,088)" 7,398,321
FEERT Profit for the year 722,388 - - - 722,388
H2EHE Other comprehensive income:
MEHEESNATEES  Change infair value of avallable-for-
Sale securities
— REBUEFE — net unrealised gains - - 178,161 - 178,161
— HEREE — realisation on disposal - - (63023) - (63,023
— B — amortisation® - - 13 - 13
— B — tax effect - - (19,595) - 19,595)
RemEm Cash flow hedges
—BEAbERNATEE — fair value changes transferred to
income statement - - - 2852 2852
—HE — tax effect - - - (7 (471)
TEERANRREE Total comprehensive income for
the year 722,388 - 95,556 2,381 820,325
HEREENERTREER  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
REFEMS0%75%E premium earned from retained
ElE profits to contingency reserve (242,407) 242,407 - - -
HRRFEEDZRBEF Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 18,489 (18,489) - - -
BERZ2-=FRE Dividends paid related to 2013 (1,500,000) - - - (1,500,000)
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REEN RRRE  ATERE Eaple
Retained  Contingency Fair value Hedging &g

profits reserve reserve reserve Total
THIL TAL T THL THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

WZE-ME+-A=+—H/ Asat31December 2014/

—“Z-h¥-A-H 1 January 2015 4,897 447 1,437,745 386,161 (2,707) 6,718,646
REERT Profit for the year 705,854 - - - 705,854
Hip 2 Al Other comprehensive income:

HEHEZSNATERE  Changeinfair value of available-for-
Sale securities

—AERERTE — net unrealised losses - - (111,566) - (111,566)

— HEREH — realisation on disposal - - (129,989) - (129,989)

—HiA — tax effect - - 39927 - 39927
b b Cash flow hedges

—BAMEROATES — fair value changes transferred to

income statement - - - 3242 3242

— A — tax effect - - = (635) (635)

AEEZANEEE Total comprehensive income for
the year 705,854 - (201,628) 2,707 506,933

HRRRFERERERR Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
REFENS0%HT5%E premium eamed from retained

il profits to contingency reserve (221,244) 21,244 - - -
HERREEEZRERF  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 26,329 (26,329) - - -
BfZZ-MERS Dividends paid related to 2014 (350,000) - - - (350,000)
R-Z-HE+=F=1+—-H Asat31December 2015 5,058,386 1,632,660 184,533 - 6,875,579
* HAHHEESFBREREEEHE & the amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale
FRAREIREE - R RES - securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
e RITE-TER_T——FERTHEE & brought forward from cumulative loss then existing in hedging reserve when
Fr RO IR & 7 $ 4 B BT S SR B 25 cash flow hedges were de-designated in 2010 and 2011. Since then, no new
B Bltz&  WEAETHNHRS cash flow hedge has been conducted.
TREDA o
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3. EENXS KIS 4ty 36. Directors’ material interests in transactions,

37.

EX#n

BEE_Z—RF+T-A=+—HAFEH
B AEBEMAKBILE BARRRRE
BEESALIAEENRS - ZHME
B EPERALRRNARESHERME
RE (RBCRBEBDEEE) RAFEAE
HIE - WRARRKS  RHEMEHNLE
EREBEEEANE -

HEBMBHRR

EERR_E-RFOA-THBERBAR
BB

37.

arrangements and contracts

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2015, there
subsisted or entered into any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in relation to the Company’s business, to which
any member of the Group was a party, and in which any person
who was a director of the Company at any time in the year or a
connected entity (as defined in the Companies Ordinance) of any
such person, directly or indirectly, had a material interest.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors
on 25 April 2016.
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